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Chairman Weisz opened the hearing on HB 1279. 

Rep. Fehr: Introduced and support HB 1279. (See Testimony #1) 

3:15 
Chairman Weisz: On page 4 on the top you added the section where you are now bringing 
the state health council in so they can expand this criteria. Is that your intent? 

Rep. Fehr: This falls under the Health Dept. and my understanding is that the health 
council with the Health Dept. will create the administrative rules. 

Mooney: Is the intent to make an effort for hospitals to try and establish a care giver in the 
aftercare aspects? 

Rep. Fehr: You will hear others following me. AARP is concerned about elderly folks who 
are routinely needing someone else there to hear instructions. My interest is in behavioral 
health and there are some language on page 1, line 9 that specifically includes behavioral 
health support. If the hospital asks the patient being discharged if they would like to 
designate a caregiver, it is more likely to happen than not. 

Josh Askvig: Director of Advocacy for AARP of ND testified in support of the bill. 
(Testimony #2) Chairman Weisz to answer your question about the health council, they 
license hospitals. If they were not to follow these provisions is there a penalty and what 
would that be? That would be spelled out in the rule making provision. Rep. Mooney if you 
have a loved one and you are involved in their care as a patient, they are included in that 
care taking team so. Today you see more cycle of hospitalization which is home, back in 
hospital and then home again. We are trying to break that cycle by including and improving 
the transitions. 
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14:09 
Rep. Porter: On page 2, at the top sub 1, explain why it is important to do this twice? 

Askvig: Within 24 hours of a patient entry into the hospital it is to make sure a person is 
involved in that care. Second, as an example, you have a child in the hospital and the 
caretakers were the parents and they had to go back to work the next day so they could 
designate another person to be the caretaker. 

Rep. Porter: In your example isn't it the parent's responsibility to notify the change of the 
caretaker rather than the hospital having to ask you again? 

Askvig: I believe that is exactly what the language states. I'm looking at page 2, line 26, 
subsection d. I read that as if they elect to change it, they need to notify the hospital and 
then the hospital has 24 hours to make that change in the medical record. 

Rep. Porter: I understand that, but I'm looking at line 2 where it says they have to do it 
twice. 

Askvig: Ok. Again on the release part, that would be the scenario I described for you. We 
are happy to clarify the language and make it simple. 

Rep. Porter: On line 3, if the patient's condition requires transfer to another hospital, why 
should the sending hospital have to worry about this provision? 

Askvig: If they had documented the name of the caregiver within in 24 hours we ask that 
the information be transferred to the designated hospital. To my knowledge this would only 
apply to North Dakota facilities. North Dakota would have to send that information to 
another hospital, but Minnesota would not have to send it to us. 

Rep. Porter: I don't see the importance on the front end of the designation as I would on 
the back end when they are being discharge to home. 

Askvig: We are happy to work on this language. 

21:30 
Barbara Handy-Marchello: Testified in support of the bil l . (See Testimony #3) 

Shelle Aberle: Testified in support of the bill. (See Testimony #4) 
30:00 
Opposition 

Dan Hannaher: Director of Legislative Affairs for Sanford Health introduced Dr. Craig 
Lamber.t 

Dr. Craig Lambrecht: Sanford Health Bismarck President testified in opposition of the bill. 
(See Testimony #5) 
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32:51 
Rep. Oversen: If Sanford Health already does a care plan upon the release of a patient, 
how does this change on how you handle the care plan, specifically designating a 
caregiver? 

Dr. Lambrecht: What additional cost, oversight and compliance issues would be 
responsible for? This will cost us more and we are at capacity everyday in mental health, 
ICU and we try to figure out who has beds and who doesn't throughout the state. 

Rep. Rich Becker: Are you saying Sanford Health is already doing the notifications and 
working with the caregivers? 

Dr. Lambrecht: Yes. We have to bare the responsibility of every discharge and make sure 
we have their medications right. We are scrambling for primary care providers. Every 
patient should have a primary care provider. That is the individual who should be 
responsible for you when you are discharged. Patients that come back after being 
discharged we don't get paid for that anymore. That is a bad day for us. 

Rep. Rich Becker: How do answer some of the people here that testified that upon 
discharged their loved ones and the caregivers were not adequately prepared to administer 
meds? 

Dr. Lambrecht: That is on us to bare that responsibility to integrate the post care delivery 
with the patient and caregiver. We could do that better. The HIPPA requirements that we 
have for confidentiality and compliance to them makes it difficult for us. and I'm afraid I'll be 
wearing orange someday 

Rep. Dick Anderson: Can you expound on the liability issues? 

Dr. Lambrecht: We know if there is going to be additional compliance issues that we are 
faced with, along with compliance comes liability. Everybody does the best job they can, 
but in the end who is responsible? 

Rep. Fehr: Could you point to something in the bill that Sanford doesn't do? 

Dr. Lambrecht: When we looked at the bill, question was, what additional services are we 
going to have to provide and what responsibilities are we going to have that will be 
demands on us? We already are tasked with discharge planning and putting together 
teams and staffing and dealing with wage issues in this environment. It will cost us, but I 
don't know how much. 

Rep. Mooney: As an identified caregiver can I be held liable for the caregiving if it was 
done improperly? 

Dr. Lambrecht: If there is a bad outcome who bares the responsibility for that? If the care 
plan was all in place I think it would be a discussion that would be very difficult to have. 
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Rep. Oversen: We don't want to increase healthcare costs. One section of the bill says we 
do not obligate the caretaker to do these tasks. I t  also requires that the hospital makes a 
brief record of what they did task the caregiver with and finally it says, we aren't creating 
private right of action against any hospital for these designations. Is there something we 
can do to clarify this better? 

Dr. Lambrecht: We could come have 3 different lawyers and they will come out with 3 
different opinions. I think those opinions at the end of the day wil l  suggest we don't know 
the answer to this as it is uncharted territory and there will be risks and it will take time, 
money and staffing that wil l  distract from patient care. 

Rep. Damschen: Would there be any liability in not informing a patient or caregiver 
properly on how to administer that care? 

Dr. Lambrecht: Absolutely. It is our responsibility to shoulder the discharge plan and then 
fol low-up. 

Rep. Rich Becker: Are there any other non-intended consequences? 

Dr. Lambrecht: We struggle to do the things we are doing now and adding more for us to 
do is difficult for us. 

Rep. Porter: I understand the good intentions of this legislation. Maybe you can give us 
some information. We have many critical access hospitals that are understaffed, adding 
this mandate on top of that how does the whole system work? 

Dr. Lambrecht: I wil l  defer that question to my col lege. It would delay care. 

Rep. Fehr: There are other states that implemented legislation like this. Are you familiar 
with what the hospitals in those states did to formulizing caregivers into their system? 

Dr. Lambrecht: I'm not familiar with what is happening in other states. We are wil ling to 
familiarize ourselves with that. 

54:00 
Jerry Jurena: President of the ND Hospital Association testified in opposition of the bill. 
(See Testimony #6) 

55:24 
Rep. Oversen: If something doesn't go right with the patient in aftercare, who does the 
liability fall on? Does this bill change how the fall out would be? 

Jurena: Yes. Right now there is no documentation in the medical records designating that 
the hospital told you to take care of your mother. With a discharge plan they sit down and 
go over the plan. It is not documented anywhere. Once it is put in the hospital record it 
becomes the hospitals responsibility. 
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Rep. Oversen: If the hospital is documenting what they told the caregiver, doesn't that shift 
the burden? 

Jurena: I don't have any control over that caregiver. Once we put it into the chart, the 
hospital shall do this and I put in there the caregiver shall do this, I'm responsible for what 
you are doing. 

Rep. Oversen: If we do need to clarify that this is not intended to shift liability back and 
forth, maybe we can do that. 

Jurena: Being a part of numerous law suits. I don't think that will hold water. 

Dan Hannaher: Sanford Health handed out Testimony for Dr. Volk. (See Testimony #7) At 
the end of this testimony, Dr. Volk states we are already struggling to meet our present 
needs. This bill should be opposed. 

Chairman Weisz closed the hearing. 
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Chairman Weisz: Let's take up 1279. 

Rep. Mooney: I have some amendments that I would like to suggest. (Attachment 1) Since 
we visited on 1279 last I have heard from my hospitals back in my district who have 
expressed discomfort with the language as it was presented. Having been a caregiver 
myself I have the sympathy and empathy for why it is that we would want to provide 
support for them, but as I listened, reread the bill and testimony, and visited with my 
hospitals and administrators what kept coming in true in my mind was home and 
community based services. In the 2013 session we passed forward a study resolution that 
was picked up by the human services committee and it was one of our study points. We 
have 3 that we studied: behavioral health, traumatic brain injury, and home and community 
based services. The home and community based services simply out of default of time 
constraints got the least amount of attention in committee. It is a huge topic and important 
to look at. Having supports is vital for us to be sure that we have the confidence and the 
needed resources to be sure that what we are doing is appropriate. I felt that we should 
have study that is based similarly what we did with the behavioral health study. It was very 
comprehensive, incorporated all the stake holders that could be identified, and the results 
were resounding. I pulled the study from that bill to see how it was phrased. The language 
you see is modeled directly from the behavioral health study. It is a comprehensive study of 
home and community based services that would include that piece of rehabilitation and 
recovery. In my mind that is one part of the whole comprehensive study plan. 

Rep. Porter: The fourth paragraph down puts the fiscal note out of the bill I think. It is a 
contracted study and not a Legislative Management study. You either fund it and do it or 
take that language out. 

Chairman Weisz: I am not so sure. Legislative council does have a fund for doing studies 
that they are given that can be consulted in the interim process, but I am not sure the way it 
is worded now. Maybe it should say Legislative Management because then they would 
have the decision not Legislative Council. Legislative Management is the elected group. If 
you gave them the decision, it would have to come out of the fund for Legislative Council 
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that is already there. Then it wouldn't rest within the council and it would have to rest within 
the Legislative Management. 

Rep. Porter: We would still have to check and make sure it falls into this budget or change 
the wording so they may contract within the budget. 

Chairman Weisz: Why don't we just eliminate the word consulted? 

Rep. Porter: Maybe Representative Mooney wants to kind of explain what that would be 
doing. The coordination belongs to the interim committee so that doesn't have to be in 
there. Is what's the intent of that paragraph, inside of the study resolution and how it fits, 
are we thinking that it is not a Legislative Management study going to an interim committee 
that it is something being RFPed to an independent consultant and then coming back and 
reporting to the Legislative Management interim committee. 

Rep. Mooney: Based off of the way that we constructed it from the behavioral health and 
much of the conversation I heard was a lot of what we talked about in the behavioral health 
when we wer'e moving that forward, is should we have the contract for consulting or not 
have the contract. Ultimately we ended up moving it forward with the may contract for 
consulting because by allowing that to be decided between Legislative Council and 
Legislative Management then it could be determined if it was appropriate or not, and if it 
was appropriate to have the consulting then they wouldn't have; ultimately the study piece 
was so large and it was early on when we had the interim period that if we were going to do 
it justice that we would have to have a third entity come in and help us build the 
comprehensive study piece to it. Drawing from how successful it was I left it how it was. I 
have no objection if there is a sense that we need to adapt it in a different way but I thought 
for discussion we should start with this. 

Chairman Weisz: It is a shall consider so I guess whatever we do in the language it 
wouldn't need a fiscal note. 

Rep. Damschen: I think the way it is worded is probably the way it was in the behavioral 
health one last year. 

Chairman Weisz: Is that the same language? 

Rep. Damschen: I think so. You put in the request and it has to be approved by the 
chairman of the Legislative Management and then there is a pool of money available for 
studies. That is the way it worked last time. 

Chairman Weisz: So the language should at least say Legislative Management then? 

Rep. Damschen: It may be that Legislative Council does the contracting. 

Rep. Mooney: I'm perfectly fine with changing that to management. 
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Rep. Fehr: I am no objections to a Legislative Management study. If this is a hog house of 
a bill I would object to that. This is a good bill, it would save some lives, and I don't want to 
lose the intent of the care giver. 

Rep. Oversen: I agree with Representative Fehr, and I resist motion to amend the bill. 

Rep. Mooney: I guess this would be my first hog house but that would have been my intent 
with this amendment. I make that a motion to amend. 

Representative Anderson: Second 

Rep. Porter: In that motion do you want to change "council" to "management"? 

Rep. Mooney: Yes. 

Rep. Fehr: I resist the motion. The existing bill would require a little extra work on the 
hospitals part and incidentally there are other states where medical groups have been 
supportive of the care act. It is unfortunate that in this state the medical folks have come 
out against it. I believe it would be minimal but once they implemented it would make a big 
difference. 

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: Yes 8, No 5, Absent 0 

Carries 

Representative Mooney: Motion a do pass as amended 

Representative Anderson: Second 

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: Yes 10, No 3, Absent 0 

Motion carries 

Representative Mooney will carry the bill 
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Adopted by the Human Services Committee � ?'? / \S 
February 23, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1279 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to provide for a 
legislative management study of home and community-based services in North 
Dakota. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY. During the 2015-16 
interim, the legislative management shall consider studying home and community­
based services in this state. The study must include consideration of home and 
community-based services and support systems that relate to chronic injury or illness, 
rehabilitation and recovery, aged or disabled individuals, and the scope of the study 
must include consideration of access, availability, and delivery of services. The study 
must include input from stakeholders, including representatives of law enforcement, 
social and clinical service providers, advocacy organizations, tribal government, state 
and local agencies and institutions, and representatives of caregivers in this state. The 
legislative management may contract for consulting and coordination of study services 
to assist the legislative management in conducting the home and community-based 
study. The legislative management shall report its findings and recommendations, 
together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixty­
fifth legislative assembly." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 15.0349.03001 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1279 : Human Services Committee (Rep . Weisz, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
(10 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1279 was placed on the 
Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to provide for a 
legislative management study of home and community-based services in North 
Dakota. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1 .  LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUD Y. During the 2015-16 
interim, the legislative management shall consider studying home and community­
based services in this state. The study must include consideration of home and 
community-based services and support systems that relate to chronic injury or 
illness, rehabilitation and recovery, aged or disabled individuals, and the scope of the 
study must include consideration of access, availability, and delivery of services. The 
study must include input from stakeholders, including representatives of law 
enforcement, social and clinical service providers, advocacy organizations, tribal 
government, state and local agencies and institutions, and representatives of 
caregivers in this state. The legislative management may contract for consulting and 
coordination of study services to assist the legislative management in conducting the 
home and community-based study. The legislative management shall report its 
findings and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement 
the recommendations, to the sixty-fifth legislative assembly." 

Renumber accordingly 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_36_002 
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A bill to provide for a legislative management study of home and community-based 
services in North Dakota 

Minutes: Attach #1- #2 Rep. Alan Fehr 
Attach #3 Rep. Gail Mooney 
Attach #4 Josh Askvig, MRP 
Attach #5 Kim Jacobson, Traill County Soc. Services 
Attach #6 HB 1279 
Attach #7 Barbara Handy-Marchello 
Attach #8 Mike Tomasko 
Attach #9 Jerry E. Jurena, NO Hospital Assoc. 

Vice Chairman Oley Larsen opened the hearing on HB 1279. 

Representative Alan Fehr, District 36, introduced HB 1279 to the Senate Human Services 
Committee. (Attachment #1) (Attachment #2)(Ends 3:25) 

Senator Warner asked if this would be a hog house amendment. 

Rep. Fehr replied that from the original bill it was hog housed into this study and what he 
handed out as suggested language would be a study for caregiving. It would be up to the 
committee as to what to do with this. 

Representative Gail Mooney, District 20, testified IN FAVOR OF HB 1279. 
(Attachment #3) (4:35-8:48) 

Senator Howard Anderson, Jr. asked if there is any information specific to North Dakota 
about whether this is done or in how many cases it's not, or if those are the things we need 
to study. 

Rep. Mooney replied that it's definitely something we need to study. We have gaps, we 
have lacking connectivity and there's no one place to make a phone call to get help. 
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Senator Dever's first thought when he was initially exposed to this was that health care 
providers do this anyway. He found out that most do, but not necessarily. He understood 
the uniformity and that it might be a good thing to study but he didn't recall a fiscal note. He 
wanted to know why the House changed it from its original bill to a study. 

Rep. Mooney explained that there was no fiscal note. The complicating factors came from 
the liability factors and then implementation - an unfunded mandate going to the private 
hospital providers to require one more level of training and documentation of their intent to 
support not only the patients but caregivers. Possible complications include the hospital 
not being able to determine who the caregiver would be or what the level of their 
capabilities might be. The hospitals would become pseudo trainers without really being 
able to weigh in on who might be appropriate in that capacity. Further issues went into the 
potential for liability. There was a clause at the end of the original bill that would take 
hospitals out of the liability equation, but there are other statutes of concern. What 
caregivers and patients need always goes back to resources and support. They need 
someone who can say what to do in the home environment, so it was services through the 
home environment as well as the hospital environment. It's more complicated than simply 
a singular mandate. That's how it ended up becoming a study. 

Chairman Judy Lee stated that this committee has heard a bill about community 
paramedics. At least one hospital is using community paramedics as part of this discharge 
plan to follow up on folks. This seems like part of the whole picture as well. They work for 
the hospital in a case like that so liability isn't an issue for them. 

Rep. Mooney agreed. There are numerable services available in communities, even in 
rural areas, that are associated with the hospital. She provided examples: nursing 
coaches, paramedics, home based providers, pharmacies, public health districts, hospice, 
and senior citizen centers. They are all a piece of the puzzle but no where do we identify 
what we have, what liability is covered through which organization, and how we piece it 
together to benefit more of the people across the state, not just those being discharged 
from a hospital setting. 

Chairman Judy Lee pointed out that the Department of Human Services has a toll free 
number in which services are available and that is now available through 211. 

Josh Askvig, Associate State Director of Advocacy for AARP North Dakota, testified IN 
FAVOR of HB 1279 (Attachment #4) (16:49-23:25) 

Senator Axness discussed aftercare costs. He cited a personal case relating to lower 
back surgery where after care instruction was not provided. Complications resulted and 
wound care was an issue. Only after the fact was the information provided. If this is 
already being done, who is liable in a situation like this? How would this bill change who is 
liable? 

Mr. Askvig said it should have no effect on liability. In the .03000 version of the bill the last 
4 lines of the last section, lines 11-14, says that the hospital is not liable. In other states we 
heard the concern about liability with hospitals. We wanted to mitigate and eliminate that 
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as much as possible. Mr. Askvig discussed examples in other states. It shouldn't change 
liability. He understands there are still concerns. 

Senator Axness pointed out that with his personal example every time he went to the 
hospital it utilized staff time and resources. Some of the complaints against this are that it 
will be an unfunded mandate. So is what's freeing up staff time also the intent of the 
original bill? 

Mr. Askvig answered that if you take additional time upfront with instructions for care at 
home, it sometimes will eliminate the likelihood that they will need care later. So it could 
eliminate hospital staffing later. The key is trying to prevent them from going back. 

Chairman Judy Lee said that federal healthcare reform has a big component talking about 
readmissions and thought hospitals are pretty tuned into that concept. 

Senator Dever stated that his perception of his healthcare and that of his family is his 
responsibility, but the purpose of the bill is to provide a tool for that. 

Mr. Askvig agreed. 

Senator Howard Anderson, Jr. pointed out that when you do surveys, everyone states 
their support. What do you perceive is the barrier to a hospital doing this now? For 
example, the people who were taking care of him irritated him when they would ask the 
same question over and over again. Why don't you feel the hospital now doesn't provide 
the proper care? Under current reimbursement rates, they don't want you back. 

Mr. Askvig indicated that caregivers have stated that they didn't get a good understanding 
until they got home, and they had to figure it out. Nothing prevents it being done today, but 
this bill would ensure that it gets done. 

Chairman Judy Lee asked why the person who felt they didn't have enough information 
when they got home didn't call back for further information. 

Mr. Askvig answered that in many instances they do, but then they are chasing afterwards 
rather than being on the front end. 

Chairman Judy Lee pointed out that if it is something a lay person is going to be doing at 
home, it probably doesn't require the highest level of instructor. Why would that kind of 
question be in there as to whether they got instructions from the doctor or nurse? 

Mr. Askvig indicated that is from the national standards. There is nothing in the bill that 
dictates who would provide that demonstration, but just that they received the aftercare 
instruction. In many instances, they are going home without instruction today. We are 
simply asking that there be a standard, that if a caregiver is designated and present at 
discharge, they be instructed. 

Chairman Judy Lee asked if he would agree that, when asking for feedback, you are more 
likely to get information back from people who are unhappy than those who are happy. 
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Mr. Askvig hesitantly agreed. 

Mr. Askvig added that Rep. Fehr handed out a study on caregivers rather than home and 
community based services. The preference would be to restore the original version of the 
bill, but if not, maybe narrow the focus to the caregivers which would make sense to them 
and be more in line with the original intent of the bill. 

Mr. Askvig confirmed that .03000 is the original version the house saw. (Attachment #6) 

Kim Jacobson, Director of Traill County Social Services, testified IN FAVOR of HB 1279. 
(Attachment #5) (34:22-40:00) 

· 

Senator Howard Anderson, Jr. said that the original intent of the care act was not so 
much assessing the HCBS, but how the information gets from the hospital to the HCBS 
provider. I don't see much of that in the study. 

Ms. Jacobson was speaking mostly to the amended version. Certainly we need to partner 
with HCBS to have that discussion to ensure good care is provided to our citizens and keep 
their condition from progressing prematurely. Under the study, if we could involve family 
caregivers and look at the system as a whole to see how each piece works, there could be 
benefit to that as a whole. 

Chairman Judy Lee appreciated Ms. Jacobson's thorough review of what could be 
included in the study. 

Senator Dever asked if observations of legislators and confusion are in both chambers. 

Ms. Jacobson responded that when talking about the different guardianships, different 
type of waivers, adult protective services, home and community based services, etc. , it gets 
very confusing. 

Senator Dever acknowledged that she was speaking to the amended version of the bill 
and asked if she preferred that to the original bill or in addition to it. 

Ms. Jacobson responded that if the original version did not impact county social services 
directly, they did not track the bill real close prior to it being hog housed. When it changed, 
it impacted them more. However she understood the need for caregivers as stated 
originally. 

Marnie Walth, representing Sanford Health, testified in support of HB 1279 as it is 
currently. She said they would also support Rep. Fehr's amended version to do a study of 
that unpaid care. They testified against the bill as it was originally heard in the House. 
(43:17) She reported that they have intricate processes in place to take care of their 
patients and when they go home. In their determination the bill as originally written would 
require unfunded mandate, duplication of processes, and more bureaucracy to a process 
they are trying to streamline and for what they are already doing well. 
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Senator Howard Anderson, Jr. used the example of ACA and the movement toward 
accountable care organizations and the issues of cutting down on readmissions to hospitals 
etc. From his own profession sometimes he gets the sense that we don't do things unless 
we are told to do them and this an example of that. He said that we seriously started 
working on readmission controls when we were told to do that. 

Ms. Walth didn't disagree with what Senator Howard Anderson, Jr. said. Often they are 
told to follow where the revenue services come from. That business model is changing to 
quality patient care. And quality care includes not having a patient come back in their 
doors after they care for them and send them home. They are now paying on quality of 
care. 

Senator Dever asked if he was in error when he earlier said that the initial response was 
that facilities already did this. He also asked if they saw a way to amend the original bill to 
address their concerns and then implementing it or if they saw a study coming that they 
could live with. 

Ms. Walth answered that they have elaborate processes in place called discharge 
planning. With the original bill, their take on it was that it was unnecessary because these 
are processes they are already doing. In listening to the conversation, she can't say that 
there aren't issues elsewhere. If the study documents those issues, it may identify best 
practices that others could learn from. 

Senator Axness pointed to the readmission rates and said that he was never readmitted 
but had to go back to the hospital numerous times. He wondered if that can be taken into 
account - that it's not just based on readmissions. 

Ms. Walth explained that the ACA is not just readmission; it is also the patient satisfaction 
survey. 

Senator Axness stated that other states have enacted this and thought Minnesota had. 
Sanford practices in Minnesota and he wondered if it has created a barrier? 

Josh Askvig offered information that it hasn't been enacted in Minnesota. 

V. Chairman Oley Larsen asked for clarification on giving information to a caregiver. 

Ms. Walth gave a personal example. Because of HIPAA, the patient needs to sign a 
release so the information can be shared with the caregiver. If the patient has had a 
surgery, they will include the caregiver in the discussion. The patient can't leave the facility 
unless someone is there to drive and they have home instructions. 

Chairman Judy Lee you have to authorize non-relative caregivers. 

Barbara Handy-Marchello testified IN FAVOR of HB 1279 in its original form. 
(Attachment #7) (53:05-55:50) 
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Senator Howard Anderson, Jr. referred to Ms. Marchello's description of the situation with 
her mother and that generally she got good information but sometimes she may have had 
questions. He wondered how the bill would help her get the answers more easily than what 
she did. He didn't see in the bill that the hospital has to provide information. 

Ms. Marchello replied that the process of communication is not always clear. There were 
times she didn't think she was going to get any information from whomever she was trying 
to talk to, and felt she needed to demand answers. It is a matter of insuring the 
communication takes place. She felt she is capable of asking the questions, but there are 
many who do not know what questions to ask. She sees this bill as addressing the issue of 
communication. 

OPPOSITION TO HB 1279 
There was no opposing testimony. 

Chairman Judy Lee referred to the electronic testimony handed out. 
(Attachment #8 and Attachment #9) 

NEUTRAL TESTIMONY ON HB 1279 

There was no neutral testimony. 

Chairman Judy Lee closed public hearing on HB 1279. 
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A bill to provide for a legislative management study of home and community-based 
services in North Dakota 

Minutes: No attachments 

The Senate Human Services Committee met on March 24, 2015 on HB 1279 for committee 
work. 

Senator Howard Anderson, Jr. expressed the study should be the caregivers rather than 
the home and community based care services. Representative Fehr had provided a 
proposed amendment. We have studied home and community based care services 
enough. This is how the information gets from the hospital to the home and community 
based care services. 

Senator Dever added this is information getting to family caregivers. 

Chairman Judy Lee indicated that we just spent a lot of money on a Long Term Care 
study that included home and community based care services. There is no need to do this 
again. 

Senator Howard Anderson, Jr. moved to ADOPT AMENDMENT as proposed by 
Representative Fehr. The motion was seconded by Senator Axness. 

Discussion 
Senator Dever likes this. When we discussed in HB 1046 about an additional facilitator, 
that is about working with family caregivers. A few sessions ago, we put money in the 
Alzheimer's Association for the same purpose, and those are very good ways of providing 
services. That is more about helping the caregiver give care. 

Chairman Judy Lee stated the thing that is different is that it requires hospitals to do 
something they are already doing. Federal healthcare reform is going to seriously dinging 
any hospital with their reimbursement if they have readmissions for somebody after the 
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fact. You have all received emails from physicians or hospital administrators saying this is 
an onerous requirement to have more documentation when they are already doing it. She 
is not sure it is really needed. 

Senator Howard Anderson, Jr. indicated that he has talked to hospitals. They are not 
opposed to the study that is suggested here because they are looking at it all the time 
anyways, and it may help them. 

Chairman Judy Lee indicated they would resist putting it back to the original language. 

Senator Axness discussed his personal experience. He wasn't readmitted so this will not 
show up on the statistics. The study is worthy of looking at. 

Roll Call Vote to ADOPT AMENDMENT 
§Yes, Q No, Q Absent. Motion passes. 

Senator Dever moved DO PASS HB 1279 AS AMENDED. The motion was seconded by 
V. Chairman Oley Larsen. No discussion. 

Roll Call Vote to DO PASS AS AMENDED 
§Yes, Q No, Q Absent. Motion passes. 

Senator Dever will carry HB 1279 to the floor. 
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Adopted by the Human Services Committee 

March 24, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1279 

Page 1, line 1, remove "home and community-based" 

Page 1, line 2, replace "services in North Dakota" with "family caregiver supports and services" 

Page 1, line 5, remove "home and community-based services in this" 

Page 1, remove lines 6 through 13 

Page 1, line 14, replace "community-based study." with "family caregiver supports and services. 
The study must identify policies, resources, and programs available for family 
caregivers and encourage additional innovative and creative means to support family 
caregivers so that they are able to continue to provide in-home support for older adults. 
The study must include input from stakeholders, including representatives of hospitals, 
social and clinical providers, advocacy organizations, tribal government, state and local 
agencies and institutions, and caregivers in this state. The study committee may 
receive testimony on the needs of family caregivers, including designation of 
caregivers, training, respite services, medical leave policies, and delegation of tasks to 
non-medical aides. The study must include an inventory of the resources available to 
family caregivers and may make any recommendations for administrative actions to 
support family caregivers. The legislative management may contract for consulting and 
coordination of study services." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 15.0349.04001 
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Carrier: Dever 

Insert LC: 15.0349.04001 Title: 0 5000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1279, as engrossed: Human Services Committee (Sen. J. Lee, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends 
DO PASS (6 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING).  Engrossed HB 1279 
was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 1, remove "home and community-based" 

Page 1, line 2, replace "services in North Dakota" with "family caregiver supports and 
services" 

Page 1, line 5, remove "home and community-based services in this" 

Page 1, remove lines 6 through 13 
Page 1, line 14, replace "community-based study." with "family caregiver supports and 

services. The study must identify policies, resources, and programs available for 
family caregivers and encourage additional innovative and creative means to support 
family caregivers so that they are able to continue to provide in-home support for 
older adults. The study must include input from stakeholders, including 
representatives of hospitals, social and clinical providers, advocacy organizations, 
tribal government, state and local agencies and institutions, and caregivers in this 
state. The study committee may receive testimony on the needs of family caregivers, 
including designation of caregivers, training, respite services, medical leave policies, 
and delegation of tasks to non-medical aides. The study must include an inventory of 
the resources available to family caregivers and may make any recommendations for 
administrative actions to support family caregivers. The legislative management may 
contract for consulting and coordination of study services. " 

Renumber accordingly 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_54_010 
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Testimony on HB 1279 
Rep Ala n  Fehr, District 36 :;-a n uci ry o(� 0<,015' 

M r  Ch airman a n d  m e m bers of the H u m a n  Services Comm ittee, I a m  Representative Alan Feh r  

of District 36. 

I a m  h ere to introduce HB 1279, which rel ates to the d esign ation of a ca regiver by a 

h osp ita l ized patient a n d  the hospita l ' s  com m u n i cation with that d esignated ca regiver. 

HB 1279 encourages the best possi b le  care of loved ones after they a re d isch a rged from a 

hospit a l .  

U nd e r  H B  lQ.79, i f  someone is  a d m itted t o  a hospital,  the hospital  wi l l  be req u i red t o  a s k  t h e  

patient or  l ega l guardian i f  they wou l d  l i ke t o  designate a ca regiver. 

A ca regiver is  gen era l ly a tru sted fa m i ly member or  friend .  Th e patient is  n ot req u i red to 

d esign ate a ca regiver but, if one is  d esignated, the hospital  would be req u i red to record that i n  

t h e  m ed ical  record a n d  notify t h e  ca regiver when the patient i s  being re leased t o  h o m e  or  

transferred to another  faci l ity. 

F u rthermore, if the patient is  being re leased to home, the hospital  is  req u i red to inform the 

ca regiver of the d isch a rge p lan a n d  com p lete aftercare instru ct ions.  

On page 3 of the b i l l , sta rt ing on l ine 1 1, the hospital  is  req u i red to p rovid e  the design ated 

caregiver with a comp lete d escription of the patient's afterca re n eeds that a re n ecessa ry to 

s u p po rt the patient to l ive at home, inc luding information a bout com m u n ity resou rces and 

instruction a bout aftercare tasks that need to be performed . As necessary, th is  cou ld inc lude a 

demonstrat ion of tasks that need to be performed a n d  an opport u n ity for the ca regiver and 

patient to h ave q uestions answered. 

This bi l l  is  i ntended to support hospita l ized patients, especi a l ly those who a re most vu lnerab le  

a n d  need addit iona l  h e l p  from fa m i ly and friends.  It is  not intended to i nterfere with good 

c l i n ical  care or any emergency n eeds. You wi l l  notice that on page 4, sta rt ing on l ine  4, there 

a re l i m itations on th is  b i l l .  Su bsection 2 sta rt ing on l ine  7 acknowledges that there m ay be 

circu msta nces that m a ke it d ifficu lt for a hospital  to fu l ly com p ly with th ese req u i rements. In  

t h at case, they wi l l  need to docu m ent their  efforts. 

In conclusion,  th is  b i l l  sets a req u i rement for hospitals to involve design ated ca regivers to 

i m p rove patient care a n d  wel lbeing fo l lowi ng release from a hospita l .  

Th a n k  you .  I u rge you to support HB 1279. I welcome your q u est ions.  

I 
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House Human Services Committee 
Josh Askvig - AARP North Dakota 

jaskvig@aarp.org or 701-989-0129 

Chairman Weisz, members of the House Human Services Committee, I am Josh 

Askvig ,  Associate State Director of Advocacy for AARP North Dakota. Thank you for 

the opportunity to appear before you today and share AARP's strong support of HB 

1279. 

Dr. Ethel Percy Andrus, a retired educator and AARP's founder, became an activist 

in the 1940s when she found a retired teacher living in a chicken coop because she 

could afford nothing else. Dr. Andrus couldn't ignore the need for health and 

• financial security in America and set the wheels in motion for what would become 

AARP. We are a nonprofit , nonpartisan membership organization with 85,000 

members in North Dakota and 38 million nationwide. We understand the priorities 

and dreams of people 50-plus and are committed to helping them live life to the 

fullest, including here in North Dakota. 

Over the past few years, AARP has raised its attention on family caregivers -

spouses, partners, relatives, friends, or neighbors who provide unpaid care for a 

loved one. We have watched the situation facing caregivers evolve - longer 

lifespans and an increase in the number of persons with complex medical conditions 

that have stressed current support systems; the growth in the number of Baby 

Boomers who find themselves squarely in the sandwich generation, caring for both 

children and parents, that has created demand for new models of care and greater 

access to information; and the increase in complex conditions requiring coordination 

that has left "caregivers trying to tie together the fragmented pieces of their family 

• member's care with several different clinicians, hospital stays, and transitions 



between settings. "1 As such, we have intensified our efforts to ensure that family 

caregivers have the support they need to care for their loved ones. 

In North Dakota, these efforts are particularly important. AARP Public Policy 

lnstitute's 2014 Long Term Scorecard showed that North Dakota ranked 33rd out of 

50 states with respect to support that family caregivers receive.2 Obviously, we can 

do more for the 109,000 individuals across the state who are caregivers for a loved 

one during the year and contribute $830 million in unpaid care.3 

HB 1279 recognizes the critical role family caregivers play in keeping their loved 

ones out of costly institutions. It puts in place some small, but meaningful supports 

for caregivers during hospital transitions, a difficult and stressful time for both 

patients and caregivers. Specifically, the bill takes several common sense steps that 

ensure a designated caregiver is seen as a partner in a patient's care. 

1 .  Designation of the Caregiver in the Medical Record - The bill provides a 

patient or his/her legal guardian an opportunity to designate a caregiver upon 

admission into the hospital and if the patient does designate a caregiver, it 

requires that the hospital simply include this designation in the medical record 

with other patient information. This designation allows the family caregiver to 

receive timely information that can allow him/her to better provide post-discharge 

care. Including the designation in the medical record shows that the caregiver is 

valued and establishes another avenue by which the hospital can share 

important information. 

2. Notification to the Caregiver of Discharge - This legislation calls on the 

hospital to alert the family caregiver, in a timely fashion, if his/her loved one is 

1 S u s a n  R e i n h a rd, Home A lo n e :  Fam ily Caregivers p ro viding Co mplex Ch ro n ic Care, AARP 

http://www.aarp.org/ content/ dam/aa rp/resea rch/pu bl ic pol icy institute/health/home-a lone-fam i ly­

ca regivers-providi ng-complex-chronic-ca re-rev-AARP-ppi-hea Ith . pdf 

2 Susan Reinhard, Raising Expectations: A State Scorecard on Long-Term Services and Supports for Older Adults, 

People with Physical Disabilities, and Family Caregivers http://www.longtermscorecard.org/ 

3 Susan Reinhard, et .a l ., Valuing the In valuable: The Growing Contribution and Cost of Caregiving 

http://assets.aarp.org/rgcenter /ppi/ltc/iS 1-ca regiving.pdf 
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being discharged home or transferred to another facility. By providing the 

caregiver with information well before discharge, the caregiver can better 

manage the transition from one care setting to another. 

3. Instruction of After-care Tasks - Most importantly, the legislation creates a 

framework through which a caregiver can receive instruction in the tasks that 

they will be asked to provide upon discharge. I n  a survey of North Dakota voters 

age 45 and older, a high number of North Dakota caregivers are responsible for 

overseeing medication management (66 percent) and medical or nursing tasks 

(56 percent) such as administering injections, operating specialized medical 

equipment, doing wound care and performing other complex health maintenance 

tasks. 

This November telephone survey of 800 North Dakota voters age 45 and older 

showed strong support for provisions in the legislation. Summaries of the survey 

data are attached to my testimony. 

• Specifically, 92 percent of the survey respondents support requiring hospitals and 

health care facilities to explain and demonstrate medical and nursing tasks that 

family caregivers will need to perform after the patient returns home; 91 percent 

support keeping a family member informed of major decisions, like transferring or 

discharging the patient; and 82 percent support recording the name of a patient's 

family caregiver in the medical record upon admission. 

• 

Again, the strong support for these proposals is even more relevant because of the 

high number of North Dakota caregivers who are responsible for overseeing 

increasingly complex medical tasks. 

As caregivers are better informed, notified, and instructed in after-care tasks, they 

have a better chance to keep their loved ones safely at home. AARP asks you to 

support House Bill 1279. Thank you for the opportunity to testify today and I am 

happy to take any questions you might have . 
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20 14 AARP Caregiving Survey of North Dakota Voters Age 45 and Older: 
Family Caregivers 

There are approximately 1 09,000 caregivers over the course of the year in North Dakota. North Dakota caregivers 
provide 71 million hours of care per year with an estimated economic value of $830 million dollars.1 

Most (70%) North Dakota voters age 45 and older believe that being cared for at home with caregiver assistance is the 
ideal situation when the basic tasks of life become more difficult due to aging or illness. Moreover, more than half (56%) 
of North Dakota voters age 45 and older say it is extremely, very, or somewhat likely they will provide care on an unpaid 
basis for an adult loved one who is ill,  frail ,  elderly or who has a d isability. 

Most North Dakota caregivers are helping or have helped their  loved ones with shopping (90%), transportation (84%) , 
household chores (82%), meal preparation (74%) as well as more complex care like managing medications (66%) and 
other n ursing and medical tasks (56%). The majority (72%) of these caregivers says it is likely that they will need to 
provide this type of care in the future. As such, nearly all (91 %) of these caregivers believe it is important to be able to 
provide care so that their loved ones can keep living independently in their own home and two-th irds (67%) believe it is 
important to have more caregiver resources and train ing that allows family caregivers to continue to provide in-home care. 

Im portance of Providing Care to 
Ad ult Loved Ones 

Among North Dakota Caregivers 
(n=383, Respondents Who Are Current or Past 

Caregivers) 

Somewhat 

Im portance of Having More Resources and 
Training for Caregivers 

Among North Dakota Caregivers 
(n=383, Responde nts Who Are Current or Past 

Caregivers) 

Somewhat 
important, 

27% 
Extremely/ 

very 
important, 

9 1 %  important, Extremely/ 
Not 

very/not at 
all 

important, 
6% 

6% very 

Not 
very/not at 

all 
important, 

2% 
Not 

sure/no 
answer, 2% 

important, 
67% 

The average age of North Dakota caregivers is 63 years old and the majority is female (60%), married (71%), 
has a two y ear college degree or h igher (64%), working either full or part-time (54%) and has an annual 
household income of less than $100,000 (56%). 

AARP North Dakota commissioned a telephone survey of 800 North Dakota voters age 45 and older to learn about their experiences 

with fami ly caregiving, as well as their opinions on proposals to support family caregivers in the state. This report highl ights results from 
voters interviewed between November 6 and November 1 6, 2014 .  The data in this report has been weighted by age, gender and 

geographic county of residence to reflect the North Dakota population of voters age 45 and older. The survey has a margin of error of 

±3. 5  percent. 

Valuing the Invaluable: 201 1 Update The Growing Contributions and Costs of Family Caregiving, Lynn Fein, Susan C. Reinhard, Ari Houser, and Rita 
houla, AARP Public Policy Institute 
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AARP is a nonprofit, nonpartisan organization ,  with a membership of nearly 38 million ,  that helps people 
turn their goals and dreams into real possibilities, strengthens communities and fights for the issues that 
matter most to families such as healthcare, employment and income security, retirement planning, 
affordable uti l ities and protection from financial abuse. We advocate for individuals in the marketplace by 
selecting products and services of high quality and value to carry the AARP name as well as help our 
members obtain discounts on a wide range of products, travel ,  and services. A trusted source for lifestyle 
tips, news and educational information ,  AARP produces AARP The Magazine, the world's largest circulation 
magazine; AARP Bul letin ; www.aarp.org; AARP TV & Radio; AARP Books; and AARP en Espanol, a 
Spanish-language website addressing the interests and needs of Hispanics. AARP does not endorse 
candidates for public office or make contributions to political campaigns or candidates. The AARP 
Foundation is an affiliated charity that provides security, protection ,  and empowerment to older persons in 
need with support from thousands of volunteers, donors,  and sponsors. AARP has staffed offices in a l l  50 
states, the District of Columbia , Puerto Rico, and the U .S. Virgin Islands. Learn ·more at www.aarp.org. 

State Research brings the right knowledge at the right time to our state and national partners in support of 
their efforts to improve the lives of people age 50+. State Research consultants provide strategic insights 
and actionable research to attain measurable state and national outcomes. The views expressed herein are 
for information, debate, and discussion ,  and do not necessarily represent official policies of AARP. 

AARP staff from the North Dakota State Office, Campaigns, State Advocacy and Strategy Integration 
(SASI) ,  and State Research contributed to the design,  implementation and reporting of this study. Special 
thanks go to AARP staff including Janis Cheney, State Director in North Dakota , Joshua Askvig , Associate 
State Director of Advocacy in North Dakota; Chryste Hal l ,  Reshma Mehta, Lani Kawamura, Wil l iam Brown, 
and Jodi Sakal ,  Campaigns; Kristina Moorhead and Sarah Mysiewicz, SAS I ;  and Joanne Binette, Rachel le 
Cummins, and Darlene Matthews, State Research. Please contact Aisha Bonner at 202-434-3531 for more 
information regarding this survey. 

Real Possibi l it ies 
AARP Research 

For more i nformation about this survey, please contact Aisha Bonner at: 

202.434.3531 or e-mai l  abonner@aarp.org 
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2014 AARP Caregiving Survey of North Dakota Voters Age 45 and Older: 
Support for Family Caregivers When Loved Ones Are Hospitalized 

North Dakota voters age 45 and o lder strongly support proposals to help family caregivers navigate the health 
care system on behalf of their loved ones. Specifica l ly, respondents support requiring hospitals and health 
care facilities to explain a nd demonstrate medical and nursing tasks that family caregivers wil l  need to perform 
after the patient returns home; keeping a family caregiver informed of major decisions, l ike transferring or 
discharging the patient; and recording the name of a patient's family caregiver in the medical record upon 
a dmission.  

The strong support for these proposals is  even more relevant due to the high numbers of North Dakota 
caregivers who are responsible for overseeing medication management (66%) and medical or nursing tasks 
(56%). 

1 00% 
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60% 

40% 
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0% 

Support for Proposals to Ensure Hospitals Engage with Family Careg ivers 
(n=800) 

92% 

I nstruct caregivers 
on medical tasks 

9 1 %  

Inform caregivers 
of major decisions 

82% 

Record caregivers 
in patient records 

The average age of North Dakota caregivers is 63 years o ld and the majority is female (60%), married (7 1 %), 
has a two year col lege degree or higher (64%), working either full or part-time (54%) and has an annual 
household income of l ess than $1 00,000 (56%). 

AARP North Dakota commissioned a telephone survey of 800 North Dakota voters age 45 and older to learn about their 
experiences with family caregiving ,  as well as their opinions on proposals to support fami ly caregivers in  the state. This 
report highl ights results from voters interviewed between November 6 and November 16 , 2 014. The data in this report 
has been weighted by age, gender and geographic county of residence to reflect the North Dakota population of voters 
age 45 and older. The survey has a margin of error of ±3.5 percent. 
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AARP is a nonprofit, nonpartisan organization, with a membership of nearly 38 mi l lion, that helps people 
turn their goals and dreams i nto real possibi lities, strengthens communities and fights for the issues that • 
matter most to fami l ies such as healthcare, employment and income security, retirement planning, 
affordable uti l ities and protection from financial abuse. We advocate for individuals in the marketplace by 
selecting products and services of h igh q ual ity and value to carry the AARP name as well as help our 
members obtain discounts on a wide range of products, travel ,  and services. A trusted source for l i festyle 
tips, news and educational information, AARP produces AARP The Magazine, the world's largest circulation 
magazine;  AARP Bulletin; www.aarp.org; AARP TV & Radio; AARP Books; and AARP en Espanol, a 
Spanish-language website addressing the interests and needs of Hispanics. AARP does not endorse 
candidates for public office or make contributions to political campaigns or candidates. The AARP 
Foundation is an affi l iated charity that provides security, protection, and empowerment to older persons in 
need with support from thousands of volunteers, donors, and sponsors. AARP has staffed offices in al l  50 
states, the District of  Columbia, Puerto Rico, and the U.S. Virg in Islands. Learn more at www.aaro. oro. 

State Research brings the right knowledge at the right time to our state and national partners in  support of 
their efforts to improve the lives of people age 50+. State Research consultants provide strategic insights 
and actionable research to attain measurable state and national outcomes. The views expressed herein are 
for informati on, debate, and discussion, and do not necessarily represent official pol icies of AARP. 

AARP staff from the North Dakota State Office, Campaigns, State Advocacy and Strategy Integration 
(SASI), and State Research contributed to the design, implementation and reporting of this study. Special 
thanks go to AARP staff includ ing Janis Cheney, State Director in North Dakota, Joshua Askvig, Associate 
State Director of Advocacy in North Dakota ; Chryste Hal l ,  Reshma Mehta, Lani Kawamura, Wi l l iam Brown, 
and Jodi  Sakal ,  Campaigns; Kristina Moorhead and Sarah Mysiewicz, SASI; and Joanne Binette, Rachelle 
Cummins, and Darlene Matthews, State Research . Please contact Aisha Bonner at 202-434-3531 for more 
information regard ing this survey. 

Real Possibi l it ies 

AARP Research 

For more i nformation about this s u rvey, please contact Aisha Bonner at: 

202.434.3531 or e-mail  a bonner@aarp.org 
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House B i l l  1279 

House Human Services Comm ittee 

January 20, 2015 

Barbara Ha ndy-Marchel lo, Bismarck, North Da kota 

Chairman Weisz and members of the House Human Services Comm ittee, I am Ba rba ra Ha ndy­

Marchel lo  from Bismarck. I am spea king in  favor of House B i l l  1279. 

I am e nter ing i nto a new phase of l ife as the ca regiver to my mother. Though my mother is  in pretty 

good hea lth, there have been times when it was necessary for me to assume the role of ca regiver 

whi le  she recovered from surgery or  i l l ness. I have found that there is  no way to adeq uately pre pa re 

for the va r ious medica l  problems and emergencies that we a l l  face as we age. 

So far, o u r  experience with the doctors, nurses, and other medical profess ionals has been very good.  

B ismarck hospitals and doctors achieve a h igh sta ndard of care .  However, I have more than o nce 

faced ris ing pa n i c  over my ab i l ity to get the i nformation I need. Though I have probably a nnoyed 

medica l  staff with my questions, I don't a lways know that I am asking the right quest ion of the right 

person .  This b i l l  w i l l  create a sound system of commun ication between medica l  staff and caregivers. 

In my fa m i ly, we a re fortunate i n  that my mother and I agree that I am her caregiver when 

necessa ry, but I know of fam i l ies where the ro le of ca regiver has been confused by fami ly  tensions . 

Th i s  b i l l  w i l l  he lp  fa m i l ies clarify this ro le which can o n ly improve the qua l ity of care. 

I also know of ca regivers who have felt that they d id not receive adeq uate i nformation abo ut the 

patient's care or  i nstructions for at-home care. At-home ca re, especia l ly for someone with no 

experience in human hea lthca re, can be very frighten ing. It is  very easy to a rrive at home and  find 

that  you d on't know or  ca n't remember when or  how to admin ister  medication or other  treatments. 

You may not know what to expect in the normal hea l i ng process. More i nformation, inc lud ing 

proper demonstration of after-care tasks, is  extremely important i n  provid ing the best poss ib le  

o ptions for recovery and a return to i ndependence for the patient. 

Whi le  it is  un l i kely that th is bi l l  wil l  cover every possib le healthca re situatio n, it wil l  go a long way 

towa rd he l p ing a fami ly  or  a ca regiver ma nage patient care and promote commun icat ion betwee n  

medica l  p rofess ionals  and ca regivers . 

Tha nk you for your attention to the needs of fa mi l ies who have to provide ca re to a loved o ne .  The 

CARE Act w i l l  he lp  to remove some of the worry and d ifficu lty for both the caregiver and the patient 

and promote better health fo r the patient. 

) 
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H o use H u m a n  Se rvi ces Co m m ittee 
J a n u a ry 20, 2 0 15 

H o use B i l l  1279 

M r .  C h a i r m a n  a n d  m e m be rs of the H o u s e  H u ma n  Servi ces Comm ittee, I ,  S h e l l e  Aber le 

wish t o  go o n  record i n  s u p port for HB 1279 (The Ca regiver, Advise, Reco rd, E n a bl e  

(CAR E )  A c t  as i ntrod uced.  

As Represe ntative Fehr n oted, o n  a ny g iven d ay, 75,000 N o rth D a kota n s  perfo rm a great 

l a bo r  of l ove by caring fo r aging pa rents, spou ses, o r  other fa m i l y  m e m bers a n d  fri e n d s .  

Th ey h e l p  w i t h  m a ny d ifferent tasks so t h e i r  l oved ones c a n  re m a i n  i nd e p e n d e n t  a n d  

safe i n  t h e i r  o w n  h o m e s .  

A m aj ority of fa m i ly ca regivers a l so perform medica l  o r  n u rs i ng tasks l i ke c o m p l ex 

med icat ion m a nageme nt, wound care a n d  i nject ions .  Yet, m ost of th ese u n pa i d  fa m i ly 

ca regivers receive l itt l e  or n o  t ra i n i ng for these d ut ies .  

My mother in  law d i ed the s u m m e r  of 2013 at age 76. S h e  was a d o u ble  k i d n ey 

t ra n sp la nt rec i p i ent  with d i a betes a n d  l ifet i m e  medica l  d iagnosis that  i nc l uded breast 

a n d  s k i n  ca ncer  ( i n  rem issio n )  a n d  i ntest i n a l  fa i l ure leaving her  with a n  i leosto m y  . 

Through decades of d o ctori ng, s h e  was a bl e  m i nded a n d  a ctive i n  h e r  own care.  My 

father  in  l a w  h a d  l itt le h a n d s  o n  with her  medica l  processes as s h e  was able to care fo r 

h e rself .  Th i s  cha nged t h e  s u m m e r  of 2013 w h e n  she was i n  a n d  out of t h e  hospita ls  a n d  

a ss isted l iv ing fa c i l it i es .  S i n ce s h e  h a d  most o f  h e r  medica l  issues fo r deca d es, it  was 

ass u m e d  upon her  re lease fro m the i nstitut ions that my father in l a w  ( age 77) was 

knowledge a b l e  i n  her  care .  H e  was too proud to ask the doctors q u esti o n s, and as a 

fa m i ly we not a lways at the h ospita l when she was released to ask q u est i o n s .  H e  d i d  not 

want  fa m i ly help a s  h e  fe lt it  sh owca sed he was n ot f it  to care fo r h i s  spouse.  Yes, a bit  

of a stu b b o rn G e rm a n ,  as is  our North D a kota n c u l t u re n ot to ask fo r h e l p .  

We offe red advi ce, ass ist a n ce, a n d  we visited often.  W e  s a w  how ragged a n d  t i e d  h e  

was beco m i ng.  We sta rted to look f o r  h o m e  hea lth care to c o m e  i n  fo r t h e m, a n d  t h e n  

s h e  w o u l d  e n d  u p  back i n  the hospita l .  

W h e n  s h e  left the h ospita l  for the fi n a l  t i me, m y  father i n  law was given a l ist  of h e r  

med icati o n s  a n d  a b a g  o f  a few new meds t o  t a k e  h o m e .  H e  was n o t  given i nfo rmation 

a bo u t  home hea lth  options o r  hospice ca re, he was n ot g iven a ny check s h eet for  h e r  

m e d icat ions, n o r  given a ny i nfo rmation o n  h e r  wo u n d  care a n d  i nject ions fo r h e r  

d i a betes.  I was t a l k i ng t o  h i m  o n  the p h o n e  s h o rt ly after her  d isch a rge a n d  h e a rd t h e  
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desperation i n  h i s  voice.  I c a l l e d  my h usband a n d  we went to the ir  h ouse to h e l p  d esign 

a care plan for her .  

F i rst was to fig u re out h e r  medicati o n  sched u l e .  I gathered a l l  the p i l l  bott les s h e  h a d  

scattered a r o u n d  the h o use.  I cou nted at  l east 150 d ifferent bott l es w i t h  meds lay ing a l l  

ove r t h e  p l a c e .  My h usband a n d  I c o m p a red a l l  the bott les to the l i st o f  meds she was 

given at  the hospita l --- she had 35 p rescribed med i cat ions to j uggle t h rough her day. 

The i n it i a l  p rocess took my h u sband and I both 4 h o u rs to set up her meds, but it  was 

d o n e  co rrect ly.  We set up al l  the meds fo r the week.  We had 115 p rescri pt ions to 

d estroy -- a n d  that i n c l u d ed l a rge bott les with ove r 6000 pain  p i l l s  in the h o use.  N ot 

everyone h a s  a fa m i ly m e m be r  that c a n  step u p  to take care of th is .  

I conti n u e  to look back a n d  see how a few s i m p l e  ste ps upon re lease w o u l d  have 

e l i m i nated t h e  a ngst fo r my father i n  law.  H a d  we not been there to h e l p  sort t h rough 

a l l  h e r  m e d i catio ns, she would have eas i ly  over or u nder dosed.  A s imple check sheet 

c o u l d  h ave solved t h i s  process. She a l so had i njections with her d i a betes a n d  w o u n d  

c a re for h e r  i l e osto my t h a t  w e  a lso he l ped my father i n  law l e a r n  as h e  d i d  not know 

how to d o  this either as h e  did not h ave a ny t ra i n i ng u po n  h e r  d ischarge . 

Watc h i ng h i s  fra ntic pace i n  trying to keep u p, we thought we were going to b u ry t h e m  

b o t h  last s u m mer.  

My h usba n d  ret i red last summer fro m the N o rth Da kota Nat ional  G u a rd a s  a Co l o n e l  

a fter servi ng fo r 35 yea rs . H e  has  the k i d n ey d isease t h a t  h i s  mother h a d  a n d  is fac i n g  a 

transplant  i n  the near  fut u re .  Although h e  i s  perfectly capable of tak ing care of h i m se l f  

r i g h t  n ow, I a m  h i s  ca regiver a l ready as we searc h  f o r  a d o n or a n d  start p l a n n i ng t h e  

futu re of t h e  tra nsp lant .  My h u sband i s  o n  pe rito nea l  d i a lysis a n d  I h ave lea rned t h a t  

process t h rough a w e e k  l o ng tra i n i ng provided b y  the h ospita l .  Th i s  e levated m y  

a p pre h e n s i o n  o n  a id i n g  i n  h i s  care a n d  assur ing t h a t  h e  gets the proper medica l  care .  

The p rovi s i o n s  i n  H o u se B i l l  1279 would e n s u re that fa m i l y  ca regive rs are kept i nfo rmed 

and are provided with a n  exp l a nat ion and a d e m o nstrat ion of the medica l  tasks they w i l l  

perfo rm at h o m e  after d ischarge from a hospita l .  

I ,  S h e l l e  Aberle respectfu l l y  req u ests a Pass o n  House B i l l  1279. 

This  test i m o n y  provi ded by S h e l l e  Aberle, N o rth Da kota cit ize n .  

• 

• 

• 
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House H u man Services Com m ittee 

Rep. Robin Weisz, Chair 

Jan. 20, 2015 

HB 1279 

Testimony presented by: 

H E A L T H  

Dr. Craig Lambrecht, Sanford Health Bismarck President 

Good morning, Chairman Weisz a n d  mem bers of the House H u m a n  Services Com m ittee. For 

t h e  record, I a m  Dr. Craig La m b recht, Sa nford H ealth Bism a rck President, a n d  I represent 

Sanford H ea lt h .  

Sa nford H ea lth,  a n  i ntegrated h ealth system h eadq u a rtered in  the Da kotas, is  t h e  largest, rural ,  

not-for-profit hea lth care system in  the nation .  Th e Sanford West d ivision is  headquartered in 

Bis m a rck and featu res cl in ic  locations i n  B ismarck, M a ndan,  Dicki n son a n d  M i not . 

• Th a n k  you for the opport u n ity to share my concerns rega rd ing the u n intended conseq u ences 

of H ou se Bi l l  1279. As an emergency department physic ian and longt ime North Dakota hea lt h  

care leader, I a p preciate the b i l l 's  honorab le  i ntent i n  that i t  is  clea rly a i m ed at h e l p i n g  patients.  

However, creating b l a n keted m a ndates targeti ng expertly-tra i n ed hospital  teams worki ng i n  an 

a l ready h igh ly-regu lated enviro n ment is  misa imed.  

• 

Please know p rovi d i ng excel lent patient care is at the core of every decision I m ake as 

president of Sanford H ealth B ismarck-afford a b l e, q u a l ity services a re top priority t h roughout 

t h e  conti n u u m  of care inc lud ing i n dividua l ized hospital  d ischa rge p l a n n ing for every patient.  

Led by a physician,  each patient's d ischa rge p la n n i ng team i ncludes speci a l ized care p roviders, 

a case worker and,  when a p p l icable, a socia l  worker col laborating with the patient a n d  the ir  

d esignated ca regiver. We work d i l igently a n d  i ntentional ly  to  maxi mize the patient's wel l ness, 

to exped ite recovery a n d  e l i m i nate the possib i l ity of avoidable rea d m ission . 

I 
O u r  M 1ss1on : 

Ded icated to the work of 
hea lth  a n d  h ea l i n g  
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This b i l l  req u i res u n d u e  b u rden to invest addit ional  staff resou rces to d u p l icate ed ucation a n d  

docu m entation processes a lready i ntegrated i nto o u r  processes. F u rthermore, t h e  t iming 

req u i rements wi l l  create i ncreased capacity chal lenges i n  that  d isch arge p l a n n i n g  wi l l  be delayed 

t h u s  i ncreasing patients' length of stay a n d  red ucing the n u m ber of ava i lab le  hospital  beds.  

F i n a l ly, the bi l l  subjects hospitals to sign ificant risk by ma ndating training and education take i nto 

a ccou nt a ca regiver's capabi l it ies a n d  l i m itations as wel l  as the patient's home enviro n ment. I a m  

concerned a bout t h e  enormous l iab i l ity th is  p laces o n  m y  team a n d  suspect i t  m a y  violate scope 

of professiona l  l icens ing pract ice i n  some situations.  

S i m p ly put, t h e  bi l l  creates a n  u nfu nded man date to docu ment and d u p l icate processes a l ready 

i n  p lace for o u r  patients. We welcome the opportu nity to work together with the b i l l 's  a uthors to 

h e l p  them learn more a bout exist ing processes and identify opport u n ities for cont i n u ed 

i m provement.  

• 

Th a n k  you for you r  leadersh i p  a n d  com m itment to support ing N orth Da kota's hea lth  care system.  • 
Cra ig La m b recht, M . D .  

Cra ig. l a m b recht@sa nfo rd h ea lth .org 

701-323-6104 

O u r  M 1ss10n : • 
Ded icated to the work of 

health  and  hea l i n c  
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North Dakota Hospital Association 

Testimony: H B  1 279 

Vision 
The North Dakota Hospital Association 

will take an active leadership role in major 
Healthcare issues. 

Mission 
The North Dakota Hospital Association 

exists to advance the health status of persons 
served by the membership. 

Hospita l  Desig nation of a Careta ker for After Care 
House H uman Service Comm ittee 

Jan uary 20, 2015 

Good morn i ng Chairman Weisz and Mem bers of the H u man Service 
Com m ittee. I am Jerry E . J u rena,  P resident of the North Dakota Hospital 
Associatio n .  I a m  unable to be present at this hearing as I a m  testify ing i n  
Senate Appropriations on the Department of H u man Services Appropriat ion 
b i l l .  

We h ave su rveyed o u r  membersh ip  regard i ng this b i l l  a n d  t h e  consensus is  
they o p pose th is b i l l  and ask that you g ive this b i l l  a Do Not Pass . 

The hospitals oppose this bi l l  for the fo l lowi n g :  
• I t  creates addit ional  expense i n  the cost of ca re by req u i ring 

addit ional  documentation of care to be provided by n on-hospital staff 
i n  a non-hospital sett ing after leavi ng the hospita l .  

• The b i l l  wi l l  i n  effect req u i re hospitals to h i re addit ional  staff. The 
h ospitals a l ready have a shortage of professional  staff and h i ring  
addit ional  people wi l l  be d ifficult .  

• There are no fu nds al located to provide this service. Basical ly  th is b i l l  
is  creat ing a n  u nfu nded mandate i mposed on the h ospitals.  

• I t  creates addit ional  l iab i l ity for the hospitals beyond o u r  contro l .  We 
have no contro l of the care that would be docu mented i n  a hospital 
chart after the patient leaves the hospita l ;  however,  because it wou ld  
be i n  the patient's chart the hospita ls wou ld  be l iable .  

• We are not aware of any problems or issues regard i n g  the cu rrent 
method of d ischarge plan n i ng hospita ls now offer. Hospita ls do work 
with referri ng faci l it ies and fam i l ies on the coord i nation of care u pon 
d i scharge . 

PO Box 7340 Bismarck, ND 58507-7340 Phone 701 224-9732 Fax 701 224-9529 
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I f  you h ave q uestions I wou ld  be wi l l i ng to address them at a later t ime o r  i n  
writi n g .  

We o ppose th is b i l l  a n d  ask that you g ive t h i s  b i l l  a D o  Not Pass. 

Respectfu l ly  S u bm itted , 

J erry E .  J urena ,  P resident 
N o rth Dakota Hospital Association 
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January 19, 2015  

North Dakota H ouse o f  Representatives 
Human Services Committee 
State Capitol 
Bismarck, N D  

RE: H B  1 279 

Chairman Weisz and M embers of the Committee: 

d1- �ANF��RD 
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I am Dr. James Volk, Chief Medical Officer at Sanford H ealth in Fargo, North Dakota. 
My apologies for not being able to appear before you in person, a work commitment 
keeps me in Fargo. However, I do wish to express deep concern over the impacts 
that House Bill 1 279 would have on Sanford Health and other providers around the 
state . 

This is bad legislation, with good intent. We agree with the bills author's that proper 
care and treatment of patients after their discharge is vital to their healing, and that 
avoiding readmissions wherever possible is desirable. These are issues we face 
every day and deal with effectively in our management of patient care. 

The bill would requi re that before a patient is discharged from a hospital  and no 
later than 24 hours after a patient enters a hospital, the hospital shall provide the 
patient or the patient's legal guardian with the opportunity to designate a caregiver. 
The hospital would have to document the patient's designation of a caregiver and 
provide instruction regarding after-care tasks to the caregiver. The hospital would 
be required to notify the patient's caregiver at least four hours before the patient is 
discharged. 

No funding is provided for these added requirements of informing and training, 
creating a burdensome unfunded mandate. And while there is a vague liability 
clause included, in the instance of a patient's negative experience with a caregivers 
tasks not having been performed properly, we believe l iability risks for our health 
system would still be significant. 

We want to assist our patients in getting the proper after-care needed to recover 
from a hospital stay. And we do it every day, counseling, educating, and training our 
patients and their caretakers when requested. But to mandate requirements, 
establish rigid timelines, and legislate protocols wil l be costly and restrictive . 

J 
Our M ission :  

Ded icated t o  the work of 
health  and hea li ng  
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The health care industry is already highly regulated. We closely monitor patient 
readmissions, and we are constantly u nder scrutiny from CMS, the Center for 
Medicare and M edicaid Services, and other federal regulators. Likewise, our 
industry accreditation through the Joint Commission closely inspects our processes 
and provides for improvement plans. And we at Sanford, and frankly all North 
Dakota providers, take pride in our national reputation as a high qual ity provider 
state. 

Our paramount concern with this legislation relates to the impacts it  would have on 
our workforce. If there is a crisis in  North Dakota health care today, it  is  our 
workforce needs. Before this legislature you wil l  find numerous bil ls attempting to 
boost access to a workforce of qualified and educated individuals. Nursing i n  
particular continues t o  woefully lack the stream o f  employee appl icants to properly 
fi l l  all our position n eeds. And this bill would exacerbate the problem by mandating 
the education and i nstruction of caretakers. We have not precisely calculated the 
FTE impact on our i nstitutions, but it would be real .  And the reality is, today, we 
cannot fil l  those additional positions. We are already struggl ing to meet our present 
needs. 

U ntil the workforce needs of the health care community are effectively addressed, 
mandating the increased workload of providers is folly, and should be opposed. 

M r. Chairman and members of the committee please know the health and healing of 
our patients is fundamental to everything we do at Sanford Health. Our patient 
focused i ntegrated system continues to evolve and we take pride i n  the ongoing 
improvements provided i n  a complex environment. We appreciate the bill 's authors 
for their concern for patients in their after-care and successful recovery processes. 
The best way to achieve results, however, is  not through legislative unfunded state 
mandates. Rather those results are best found in the coordinated patient care of the 
health care environment. 

Respectfully submitted, 

v--- V�r � 
J a mes Volk 
ef Med ical Officer 

Sanford H ealth 
Fargo, N D  

I 
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During the 2015-16 interim, the legislative ma nagement shal l  consider studying home and community 

based services in North Dakota. 

The study must inc lude consideration of home and commun ity based services and support systems that 

re late to chronic injury or  i l lness, rehabi l itation and recovery, aged or  d isabled ind ividua ls, and the scope 

of the study m ust inc lude consideration of access, ava i labi l ity, and del ivery of services. 

The study m ust inc lude input from stakeholders, inc luding representatives of law enforcement, social 

and c l inical service providers, advocacy organizations, tribal government, state and loca l agencies and 

institutions, and representatives of ca regivers in North Da kota. 

The legislative counci l  may contract for consult ing and coord ination of study services to assist the 

legislative ma nagement in cond ucting the home and commun ity based study. 

The legislative ma nagement sha l l  report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation 

requ i red to implement the recommendations, to the sixty-fifth legislative assembly. 



Testimony on HB 1279 
Rep Ala n  Fehr, District 36 
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Madam C h a i r  a n d  m e m be rs of the Se nate H um a n  Services Committee, I a m  Representative 

Alan Fehr of District 36. 

I a m  here to i ntroduce HB 1279. HB 1279 in  its current for m  req uests a legislative man agement 

study of home and com m u n ity-based services, specifica l ly relat ing to support systems, access, 

ava i lab i l ity, a n d  del ivery of services. 

This amended b i l l  is  a hog-house of t h e  origi n a l  b i l l, which was modeled after a n ational  

i n itiat ive known as the Ca re Act . 

The Care Act relates to t h e  d esignation of a ca regiver by a h ospita l ized patient and the 

hospita l 's  com mu n ication with that d esignated ca regiver to encourage the best possible ca re of 

loved ones afte r they are d ischarged from a hospita l .  If someone is adm itted to a hosp ita l, the hospital 

would be requ i red to ask the patient or legal guard ian if they wou ld  l ike to designate a caregiver. 

A ca regiver is genera l ly a trusted fa m i ly member or friend .  The patient is  n ot req u i red to 

designate a ca regiver b ut, if one is  des ignated, the hospital  wou ld be req u ired to record that i n  

the med ica l record a n d  n otify t h e  ca regiver when the patient is  being re leased t o  home or  

transferred to anoth e r  fac i l ity. 

F u rthermore, if t h e  patient is  be ing released to home, the h ospital  is req u i red to inform the 

ca regiver of the d ischa rge p lan and complete afterca re instructions.  

The Care Act is  i ntended to support h ospital ized patients, especia l ly t h ose who are most 

v u l n erable a n d  n eed a ddit iona l  h e l p  from fam i ly and friends .  It is  not tntended to interfere with 

good c l in ica l  care or  any e m e rgency n eeds. The Care Act i n cl udes protection from l iab i l ity for 

h ospitals a n d  the ir  workers. 

You wil l  hear  further  testimony on the Care Act and the i m p o rtance of p romoting 

com m u n i cation with ca regivers. S i nce th is  b i l l  was t u rned i nto a study, I a m  requ esting th is  

Com m ittee to cons ider  t h e  va lue  of t h e  Ca re Act, e ither to consider the orig ina l  version of the 

bi l l  or  to i nc lude the Ca re Act in  t h e  study.  A d raft of suggested langu age has been p repared. 

I welcome you r  q u estions .  
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SECTION 1 .  LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY. During the 201 5- 1 6  interim, 

legislative management shall consider studying family caregiver supports and services. The 

study committee must identify policies, resources, and programs available for family caregivers 

and encourage additional innovative and creative means to support family caregivers so that they 

are able to continue to provide in-home support for older adults. The study must include input 

from stakeholders, including representatives of hospitals, social and clinical providers, advocacy 

organizations, tribal government, state and local agencies and institutions, and representatives of 

caregivers in this state. The study committee may receive testimony on the needs of family 

caregivers, including designation of caregivers, training, respite services, medical leave policies, 

delegation of tasks to non-medical aides and other policies . The study committee must compile 

an inventory of the resources available to family caregivers . Legislative management may 

contract for consulting and coordination of study services to assist legislative management in 

conducting the family caregiving study. Legislative management shall report its findings and 

recommendations for legislative and administrative action to support family caregivers, together 

with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixty-fifth legislative 

assembly. 
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Chairman Lee, a n d  Senate H u m a n  Services Comm ittee, t h a n k  you for the opportunity to speak on 

HB 1279. 

I n  its origin a l  form, HB 1279 was i ntended to serve as a means to 

i d entify, train a n d  record ca regiver(s)  instructions t h rough h ospital 

d isch a rge p la ns.  Th e House H u m a n  Services hearing provid ed 

n u m e rous test i m o n ies i n  su pport of t h e  b i l l , which clea rly 

Examples of Potential 

Home & Community 

Based Service Partners 

demonst rated a need for consistent resou rces and support systems for Hospitals, Long Term 

ca regivers for in-home patient recovery and care upon hospital  

d isch arge. However, opposition ca m e  in  the form of the 

i m plementat ion - logistics, q u a l ifie rs, staffing and l i a b i l it ies were a l l  

points o f  concern.  Both s ides h a d  va l i d  a n d  decidedly i m portant 

poi nts. 

The d i fferences between ca regiver/patient needs, a n d  the p ractica l 

points of i m p l e m entation were n ever reconci led, yet in the i nterest of 

q ua l ity conti n u u m  of ca re, it seemed cou nterprod uct ive to not arrive 

at a v iabie soiution going forwa rd fro m this  session .  

Care, Socia l  Services, 

Pharmacies, Paramedics, 

Advanced Emergency 

Medical  Technic ians, 

Physicians, Nu rses, 

Physicians Assistants, 

Publ ic  Hea lth Districts, 

Hospice, Senior Citizens 

Centers, Meals on 

Wheels . . .  p lus others to 

identify, develop or 

connect. 

What you see before you, in HB 1279, is a Hog House Amendment that wou l d  ask Legislative 

M a n agement to cons ider  an interim study of Home a n d  Com m u nity Based Services that i nc ludes 

the relevant poi nts of recovery a n d  rehab i l itation from the origi n a l  b i l l .  



_..----.. 

Why Home and Community Based Services ? 

To answer that, we can ste p  back to t h e  origin a l  goals, as heard i n  the House H u m a n  Services 

Com m ittee:  resources and supports. To p rovide patients a nd their d es ignated caregivers with 

the n ecessa ry systems to ensure a p propriate a n d  q u a l ity care is provided in the in-home sett ing, 

once disc h a rged from a hospita l .  A s im ple m a n date of one more d ischa rge form - or t h e  d irective 

of m i n i m a l  requ i re ments in a d ischa rge p lan m ay sou n d  good - but in p ractical ity wou l d  do l ittle 

to p rovid e  the act u a l  outcomes of resou rces and supports. 

To p rovide consistent and m e a n ingfu l outcomes, we n eed to take a concerted effort to look at 

the fu l l  spectrum of com m u n ity systems (both p rivate and publ ic  sectors) to i dentify ava i l a b l e  

resou rces, supports, a n d  services - a n d  where there a re gaps - t o  arrive a t  a systematic a p p roach 

to the needs.  The goal  of he lp ing  people to rema i n  in the ir  homes longer - and with safe a n d  

h ea lthy s u pport systems - is key to t h e  overa l l  wel l ness of people across the state. 

The study la nguage was derived from t h e  Behaviora l  Healt h  I nterim Study i n it iated from t h e  2013 

Legislative Ass e m b ly.  The fram ework of that study was d e l i berate in  the o bjective of o ut comes 

for t h e  2015 Legislative Session, and as a resu lt was reso u n d ingly successfu l .  It made sense to 

model  a H o m e  and Comm u n ity Based Services Study off th is  language. 

I wou ld welco m e, and encou rage, t h i s  com mittee to consider any adjust ments of language t h at 

m ight strengthen t h e  construct of a Home and Com m u n ity Based Services study for the 

assu ra nces of best outcomes for the 2017 Session.  I n  doing so, we can expect to take i n  to 

acco u nt n ot o n ly t h e  n eeds of pat ients and caregivers i n  a recovery a nd reha b i l itation situation, 

but  a lso in the p reventative conti n u u m  of h ealthy l iving n eeds for a b roader spectru m  of N orth 

Dakota cit izens of a l l  ages. 
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North Dakotclo?"q§_i 
HB 1279 - AMEN D  to SUPPORT FAMILY CAREG IVERS 

March 17, 2015 
House Human Services Committee 
Josh Askvig - AARP North Dakota jaskvig@aarp.org or 701-989-0129 

Chair Lee, members of the Senate Human Services Committee, I am Josh Askvig, 

Associate State Director of Advocacy for AARP North Dakota. Thank you for the 

opportunity to appear before you today and share AARP's strong support for North 

Dakota's family caregivers. 

Dr. Ethel Percy Andrus, a retired educator and AARP's founder, became an activist 

in the 1940s when she found a retired teacher living in a chicken coop because she 

could afford nothing else. Dr. Andrus couldn't ignore the need for health and 

financial security in America and set the wheels in motion for what would become 

AARP. We are a nonprofit, nonpartisan membership organization with 85,000 

members in North Dakota and 37 million nationwide. We understand the priorities 

and dreams of people 50-plus and are committed to helping them live life to the 

fullest, including here in North Dakota. 

Let me be clear, we support home- and community-based services and efforts to 

improve those supports. However, HB 1279 was originally introduced to provide 

support and recognition to the unpaid backbone of home care in North Dakota -

family caregivers. We want to state up front our ask is that you restore the bill to its 

original version, taking into account the potential need for amendments that hospital 

advocates may have to make this bill workable for them. 

Why do we support the original version? Over the past few years, AARP has raised 

its attention on family caregivers - spouses, partners, relatives, friends, or 

neighbors who provide unpaid care for a loved one. We have watched the situation 



facing caregivers evolve: longer lifespans and an increase in the number of persons 

with complex medical conditions that have stressed current support systems; the 

growth in the number of Baby Boomers who find themselves squarely in the 

sandwich generation, caring for both children and parents, that has created demand 

for new models of care and greater access to information; and the increase in 

complex conditions requiring coordination that has, to quote the report Home A lon e: 

Family Caregivers pro viding Complex Chronic Care, left "caregivers trying to tie 

together the fragmented pieces of their family member's care with several different 

clinicians, hospital stays, and transitions between settings. "1 As such, we have 

intensified our efforts to ensure that family caregivers have the support they need to 

care for their loved ones. 

In North Dakota, these efforts are particularly important. AARP Public Policy 

lnstitute's 2014 Long Term Scorecard showed that North Dakota ranked 33rd out of 

50 states with respect to the legal system and supports that family caregivers 

receive.2 Obviously, we can do more for the 109,000 individuals across the state 

who are caregivers for a loved one during the year and contribute $830 million in 

unpaid care.3 

HB 1279 originally was drafted to recognize the critical role family caregivers play in 

keeping their loved ones out of costly institutions. It would put in place some small, 

but meaningful, supports for caregivers during hospital transitions, a difficult and 

stressful time for both patients and caregivers. Specifically, the original bill took 

several common sense steps that ensure a designated caregiver is seen as a 

partner in a patient's care. 

1 S u s a n  Re i n h a rd,  Home A lo n e :  Fam ily Caregivers pro viding Complex Chronic Care, AAR P  

http://www.aarp.org/content/da m/aarp/research/public pol icy institute/hea lth/home-a lone-fa mily­

caregivers-providing-complex-chron ic-care-rev-AARP-ppi-health.pdf 

2 Susan Reinhard, Raising Expectations: A State Scorecard on Long-Term Services and Supports for Older Adults, 

People with Physical Disabilities, and Family Caregivers http://www. longtermscorecard.org/ 

3 Susan Reinhard, et .a l ., Valuing the Invaluable: The Growing Con tribution and Cost of Caregiving 

http:// assets. a a rp .o rg/rgcenter /pp i/ltc/iS 1-ca regivi ng. pdf 
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1 .  Designation of the Caregiver in the Medical Record - The bill as introduced 

provides a patient or his/her legal guardian an opportunity to designate a 

caregiver upon admission into the hospital. If the patient does designate a 

caregiver, it requires that the hospital simply include this designation in the 

medical record with other patient information. This designation allows the family 

caregiver to receive timely information that can allow him/her to better provide 

post-discharge care. Including the designation in the medical record shows that 

the caregiver is valued and establishes another avenue by which the hospital can 

share important information. 

2. Notification to the Caregiver of Discharge - This legislation calls on the 

hospital to alert the family caregiver, in a timely fashion, if his/her loved one is 

being discharged home or transferred to another facility. By providing the 

caregiver with information well before discharge, the caregiver can better 

manage the transition from one care setting to another. 

3. Instruction of After-care Tasks - Most importantly, the legislation creates a 

framework through which a caregiver can receive instruction in the tasks that 

they will be asked to provide upon discharge. In a survey of North Dakota voters 

age 45 and older, a high number of North Dakota caregivers are responsible for 

overseeing medication management (66 percent) and medical or nursing tasks 

(56 percent) such as administering injections, operating specialized medical 

equipment, doing wound care and performing other complex health maintenance 

tasks. 

This November telephone survey of 800 North Dakota voters age 45 and older 

showed strong support for provisions in the legislation. Summaries of the survey 

data are attached to my testimony. 

Specifically, 92 percent of the survey respondents support requiring hospitals and 

health care facilities to explain and demonstrate medical and nursing tasks that 

-- family caregivers will need to perform after the patient returns home; 91 percent 

support keeping a family member informed of major decisions, like transferring or 

4 .3 



discharging the patient; and 82 percent support recording the name of a patient's 

family caregiver in the medical record upon admission. 

The strong support for these proposals is even more relevant due to the high 

numbers of North Dakota caregivers who are responsible for overseeing medication 

management (66 percent) and complex medical or nursing tasks (56 percent). 

Couple this with the information we know from the Home Alone report that "The 

majority of these medication caregivers (more than 60 percent) learned how to 

manage at least some of the medications on their own . . .  " Almost half (47 percent) 

said they received no training. Thirty-two percent received training in an outpatient 

setting. And critically, only 16 percent received training from a hospital nurse or 

doctor.4 

AARP asks you to restore House Bil l  1279 to its original version as the CARE 

Act. As caregivers are better informed, notified, and instructed in after-care 

tasks, they have a better chance to keep their loved ones safely at home and 

prevent hospital readmissions. 

Thank you for the opportunity to testify today. I am happy to take any questions you 

might have. 

4 S u s a n  R e i n hard, Home A lon e :  Fam ily Ca regivers p ro viding Co mplex Ch ro nic Care, AAR P  

http://www.aarp.org/content/dam/aarp/research/publ ic pol icy institute/health/home-a lone-fami ly­

caregivers-providing-complex-chronic-care-rev-AARP-ppi-hea lth.pdf 



Real Possibi l ities 

20 14 AARP Caregiving Survey of North Dakota Voters Age 45 and Older: 
Support for Family Caregivers When Loved Ones Are Hospitalized 

North Dakota voters age 45 and older strongly support proposals to help family caregivers navigate the health 
care system on behalf of their loved ones. Specifical ly, respondents support requiri ng hospitals and health 
care faci lities to explain and demonstrate medical and nursing tasks that family caregivers wi l l  need to perform 
after the patient returns home; keeping a fami ly caregiver informed of major decisions, like transferring or 
discharg ing the patient; and record ing the name of a patient's family caregiver in  the medical record upon 
admission.  

The strong support for these proposals is even more relevant due to the high numbers of North Dakota 
caregivers who are responsible for overseei ng medication management (66%) and medical or nursing tasks 
(56%). 
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S upport for Proposals to Ens u re Hospitals Engage with Family Caregivers 
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Record caregivers 
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The average age of North Dakota caregivers is 63 years old and the majority is female (60%), married (7 1 %), 
has a two year col lege degree or h igher (64%), working either fu l l  or part-time (54%) and has an annual 
household income of less than $ 1 00,000 (56%). 

AARP North Dakota commissioned a telephone survey of 800 North Dakota voters age 45 and older to learn about their 
experiences with family caregiving, as well as their opinions on proposals to support family caregivers in the state. This 
report h ighlights results from voters interviewed between November 6 and November 1 6, 201 4. The data in this report 
has been weighted by age, gender and geographic county of residence to reflect the North Dakota population of voters 
age 45 and older. The survey has a margin of error of ±3.5 percent. 

2014 AARP Caregiving Survey of North Dakota Voters Age 45 and Older: Support for Family Caregivers When Loved Ones Are Hospitalized Page l 



AARP is a nonprofit, nonpartisan organization ,  with a membership of nearly 38 m il l ion,  that helps people 
turn their goals and dreams into real possibi lities , strengthens communities and fights for the issues that 
matter most to fami l ies such as healthcare, employment and income security, retirement planning,  
affordable uti l ities and protection from financial  abuse. We advocate for individuals i n  the marketplace by 
selecting products and services of h igh qual ity and value to carry the AARP name as well as help our 
members obtain d iscounts on a wide range of products, travel ,  and services. A trusted source for l ifestyle 
tips, news and educational information, AARP produces AARP The Magazine, the world's largest circulation 
magazine; AARP Bu l letin; www.aarp.org ;  AARP TV & Radio; AARP Books; and AARP en Espanol, a 
Spanish-language website addressing the interests and needs of Hispanics. AARP does not endorse 
candidates for publ ic office or make contributions to political campaigns or candidates. The AARP 
Foundation is an affi l iated charity that provides security, protection, and empowerment to older persons in 
need with support from thousands of volunteers, donors ,  and sponsors. AARP has staffed offices in a l l  50 
states, the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, and the U . S. Virg in  Islands. Learn more at www.aarp.org. 

State Research brings the right knowledge at the right t ime to our state and national partners i n  support of 
their efforts to improve the l ives of people age 50+. State Research consultants provide strateg ic  insights 
and actionable research to attain measurable state and national outcomes. The views expressed here in  are 
for information, debate, and d iscussion, and do not necessarily represent official pol icies of AARP.  

AARP staff from the North Dakota State Office, Campaigns, State Advocacy and Strategy I ntegration 
(SASI ) ,  and State Research contributed to the design,  implementation and reporting of this study. Special 
thanks go to AARP staff including Janis Cheney, State Director in  North Dakota, Joshua Askvig, Associate 
State Director of Advocacy in North Dakota; Chryste Hal l ,  Reshma Mehta, Lani Kawamura, Wil l iam Brown, 
and Jodi Sakol , Campaigns; Kristina Moorhead and Sarah Mysiewicz, SAS I ;  and Joanne Binette , Rachelle 
Cummins,  and Darlene Matthews, State Research. Please contact Aisha Bonner at 202-434-3531 for more 
information regard ing this survey. 

Real  Possibi l it ies 

AARP Research 

For m o re i nformation about th is  s u rvey, please contact Aisha Bonner at: 

202.434.3531 or e-m a i l  abonne r@aa rp.org 



Rea l Possibilities 

20 14 AARP Caregiving Survey of North Dakota Voters Age 45 and Older: 
Family Caregivers 

There are approximately 1 09,000 caregivers over the course of the year in North Dakota. North Dakota caregivers 
provide 71 mil l ion hours of care per year with an estimated economic value of $830 mil l ion dollars.1 

Most (70%) North Dakota voters age 45 and older believe that being cared for at home with caregiver assistance is the 
ideal situation when the basic tasks of l ife become more difficult due to aging or i l lness. Moreover, more than half (56%) 
of North Dakota voters age 45 and older say it is extremely, very, or somewhat likely they will provide care on an unpaid 
basis for an adult loved one who is ill, fra i l ,  elderly or who has a disabi lity. 

L/ . 1 

Most North Dakota caregivers are helping or have helped their  loved ones with shopping (90%), transportation (84%) ,  
household chores (82%), meal preparation (74%) a s  well as more complex care like managing medications (66%) and 
other nursing and med ical tasks (56%) .  The majority (72%) of these caregivers says it is l ikely that they will need to 
provide this type of care in the future. As such, nearly all (91 %) of these caregivers believe it is important to be able to 
provide care so that their loved ones can keep living independently in their  own home and two-th irds (67%) believe it is 
important to have more caregiver resources and tra ining that al lows family caregivers to continue to provide in-home care. 

Im portance of Providing Care to 
Adu lt Loved Ones 

Among North Dakota Caregivers 
( n=383, Respondents Who Are Current o r  Past 
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The average age of North Dakota caregivers is 63 years old and the majority is female (60%), married (71 %), 
has a two year col lege degree or h igher (64%), working either ful l  or part-time (54%) and has an annual  
household income of less than $ 1 00,000 (56%). 

AARP North Dakota commissioned a telephone survey of 800 North Dakota voters age 45 and older to learn about their experiences 
with family caregiving, as well as their opinions on proposals to support family caregivers in the state. This report highlights results from 
voters interviewed between November 6 and November 1 6, 2014.  The data in this report has been weighted by age, gender and 
geographic county of residence to reflect the North Dakota population of voters age 45 and older. The survey has a margin of error of 
±3.5 percent. 

1 Valuing the Invaluable: 201 1 Update The Growing Contributions and Costs of Family Caregiving, Lynn Fein, Susan C. Reinhard, Ari Houser, and Rita 
Choula, AARP Public Policy Institute 
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AARP is  a nonprofit, nonpartisan organization ,  with a membership of nearly 38 mi l l ion,  that helps people 
turn thei r  goals and dreams into rea l  possibi lities, strengthens communities and fights for the issues that 
matter most to fami l ies such as healthcare, employment and income security, retirement planning, 
affordable uti l ities and protection from financial abuse. We advocate for individuals in  the marketplace by 
selecting products and services of h igh qual ity and value to carry the AARP name as well as help our 
members obtain discounts on a wide range of products, travel ,  and services. A trusted source for l ifestyle 
tips, news and educational information, AARP produces AARP The Magazine, the world's largest circu lation 
magazine; AARP Bu l leti n ;  www .aarp.org; AARP TV & Radio; AARP Books; and AARP en Espanol, a 
Spanish-language website addressing the interests and needs of H ispanics. AARP does not endorse 
candidates for public office or make contributions to political campaigns or candidates. The AARP 
Foundation is an affil iated charity that provides security, protection,  and empowerment to older persons in  
need with support from thousands of volunteers, donors ,  and sponsors. AARP has staffed offices in  a l l  50 
states, the District of Columbia,  Puerto Rico,  and the U.S. Virg in  Is lands. Learn more at www.aaro.org. 

State Research brings the right knowledge at the right time to our state and national partners i n  support of 
their efforts to improve the l ives of people age 50+. State Research consultants provide strateg ic  insights 
and actionable research to attain measurable state and national outcomes. The views expressed herein are 
for i nformation, debate , and discussion,  and do not necessarily represent official pol icies of AARP. 

AARP staff from the North Dakota State Office , Campaigns, State Advocacy and Strategy I ntegration 
(SASI) ,  and State Research contributed to the design, implementation and reporting of this study. Special 
thanks go to AARP staff including Janis Cheney, State Director in  North Dakota, Joshua Askvig ,  Associate 
State Director of Advocacy in North Dakota; Chryste Hal l ,  Reshma Mehta , Lani Kawamura, Wi l l iam Brown, 
and Jodi Sakal , Campaigns; Kristina Moorhead and Sarah Mysiewicz, SAS I ;  and Joanne Binette, Rachel le 
Cummins, and Darlene Matthews, State Research. Please contact Aisha Bonner at 202-434-3531 for more 
information regard ing this survey. 

ossibi l it ies 
AARP Research 

For m o re i nformation about th is  s u rvey, please contact Aisha Bonner at: 

202.434.3531 or e-mai l  abonner@aa rp.org 
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Cha i rman Lee a n d  m e m bers of t h e  Senate H u m a n  Service Com mittee, fo r the record m y  

name i s  K im  Jaco bson .  I a m  t h e  D i rector o f  Tra i l l  County Soc ia l  Services located i n  H i l lsbo ro, 

North Da kota . I a m  a lso a m e m be r  of the N orth Da kota Cou nty Soc ia l  Serv ice D i rector's 

Assoc iat ion .  I speak today i n  s u p po rt of H ouse Bi l l  1279.  

Home and Com m u n ity Based Services ( H CBS) a re very i m portant serv ice i n  N o rth Da kota . 

They he lp  e lder ly  a n d  d isa b led i n d iv idua l s  l ive safe ly, i dea l l y  i n  the i r  home commun it ies a n d  i n  

t h e  least restr ictive env iro n m ent .  For  t h e  pu rposes o f  m y  test imony, my defi n it ion  o f  H CBS 

services is  very i nc l us ive i nc l ud i ng the fu l l  spectrum of services p rovided to the aged and  

d isab led rang ing but  not l i m ited to fa m i ly ca regivers, q u a l if ied service prov iders, assisted l ivi ng, 

basic care, a n d  sk i l l ed n u rs ing care .  This is  a lso be referred to by som e  as the long-term care 

conti n u u m .  

North Da kota H CBS services, po l i cy and  structure h a s  been i m p lemented p iece by p iece ove r 

a period of t i m e .  M a ny facto rs i nc l u d ing federa l  p rogra m fu nd ing and ru les, wa iver a pp rova l s, 

state l eg is l ative a ct ion ,  po l icy deve l o p ment, i nterpretat ions, etc. a l l  i m p a ct our  c u rrent system.  

From m y  pers pective a s  a Cou nty Socia l  Service Director, the  cu rrent struct u re is a tang led 

m atrix wh i ch is  very c u m b e rsome, fractu red, and  non-cohesive. I n  actua l ity, the focus of the 

progra m is system-centered (s i los )  vs .  c l ie nt-centered serv ice .  Addit iona l ly, as  a loca l  agen cy 

we see how the system i s  confus ing for c l ients, the i r  fa m i l ies, p roviders, a n d  even ourselves.  

Based o n  m y  d iscuss ion a n d  o bservat ions of legis lators, I often their hear com ments about the i r  

confus ion and q u est ions as  they face i m po rtant dec is ions  rega rd i ng po l i cy, service, and fu nd ing.  

From my understa n d i ng, HB 1279 is crafted to m i rror the  process of the Behaviora l  Hea lth 

Study.  Such study would a l low a b i rds-eye view of the system as a whole ,  whi le  he lp ing 

educate a l l  i n d ividua l s  o n  the syst e m  strengths, needs, ba rr iers, and op port u n it ies .  Through 

independent study i n c l u d i ng a wide va riety of sta keholders partner ing with offic ia ls, we cou ld  

y ie ld  i nformat ion that  cou ld  effectively shape futu re dec is ions rega rding fu n d i ng, needs, and  

refi ne current p rogra m s .  Th is  w i l l  a l l ow a reference po int  for  legis lators a n d  other  dec is ion­

ma kers to m a ke sound dec is ions  a n d  to spend va l u a b le  tax-payer do l l a rs wise ly th rough h igh ly 

i nfo rmed dec is ion-m a ki ng .  

Cou nty Soc i a l  Services recom me n d  the fo l lowing items to  be cons idered as  potent ia l  a reas  of  

study: 



• Identify the var ious services o n  the fu l l  spectr u m  by  defin ing services a n d  deve lop ing 

com m o n  vernacu l a r  (vs. j a rgon a n d  acronyms) to e nsure understan d ing.  

• Identify the gaps  a nd b a rr iers for people needing service, those receiving service a n d  

com pa re with services ava i l a b le  throughout t h e  state. 

• O btai n  cost effectiveness statistics of serving  individua ls at each leve l of care.  

• I nc lude the entire contin u u m  of care in  the study (such as long-ter m  care, assisted l iving, 

bas ic ca re, PACE, M oney Fo l l ows the Person, O ptions services, i ndividua l/agency QSPs, 

fami ly  ca regivers, home hea lth, DD p roviders, Pub l ic Hea lth, a dvocacy grou ps, etc . )  

• Provide a n  o p p o rtu nity to e ngage service providers, fa mi ly  mem bers, ind ivid ua l s, 

o rga n ization s, state a n d  l oca l offic ia ls, a dvocacy grou ps, and legis lators, etc. to learn a n d  

prob le m-solve together w h i l e  strategiz ing for the future o f  service i n  N o rth Da kota . 

• Identify potent ia l  o pt ions to ear ly  interventio n/prevention/cost-savings to sk i l led 

n u rs ing home care such a s  i nnovative a lternate services (ex .  l i m ited SPED) .  

• M ost i m po rta ntly, exa m ine a nd m a ke p rogram i m p rovement reco m m endations us ing 

the c l ient's pers pective with the goa l  of enhancing a seamless p rogra m by w ra p ping 

services a ro u n d  a c l ient to s u pport them dur ing the i r  contin u u m  of care h istory. 

P rior  to c los ing my test imony, I wou ld  l i ke to share with you the importa nce and  re lationsh ip  

between HB 1279 and S B  2206 - Socia l  Service Fundi ng .  I t  woul d  be idea l  for  a n  H CBS study  to 

be performed d u ring  the same t ime as the Governor's Socia l Service Fund ing Comm ittee work .  

Th i rty-e ight cou nties, inc lud ing Tra i l l  Cou nty, operate a county-fu nded HCBS p rogram .  These 

p rogram s  a re cou nty program s  a n d  a re fu nded and  defined by each p a rticipating cou nty. If 

work on both item s  cou ld  be c o m pleted d u ring the same i nterim, we cou ld  be prepa red for 

informed decision-ma king as  the 65'h Legis lative Assemb ly  a pp roaches with the goal of 

p reventing any  u nintended consequ ences that cou l d  potent ia l ly  harm our  e lderly  a n d  disab led 

citizens served at the cou nty socia l  service leve l .  

For these reasons, I u rge you to s u pport passage of House B i l l  1279 with a "Do PASS" 

reco mm en dation .  Tha n k  you for your  consideration .  I welcome questions from the com mittee. 
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1 A B I LL for an Act to create and enact chapter 23-48 of the North Dakota Century Code,  relating 

2 to a hospita l patient's designation of a caretaker to assist with after-care. 

3 BE IT E NACTED BY THE LEGIS LATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

4 S ECTION 1 .  Chapter 23-48 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as 

5 follows: 

6 23-48-01 . Defi nitions. 

7 As used in this chapter: 

8 .L "After-care" means assistance provided by a caregiver to a patient after the patient's 

9 

1 0  

1 1 

1 2 

re lease from a hospita l .  The term may include assisting with behavioral health support 

services, basic activities of dai ly l iv ing, instrumental activities of dai ly l iving, and 

carrying out medical or n u rsing tasks, such as managing wound care, assisting in 

administering medications, and operating medical equipment. 

1 3  2. "Caregiver" means an ind ividual du ly designated as a caregiver by a patient u nder this 

1 4  

1 5  

1 6  

chapter. who provides after-care assistance to a patient in  the patient's residence.  The 

term may include a relative, partner, friend, or neighbor or any ind ividual who has a 

s ign ificant relationship with the patient. 

1 7  l. "Entry" means a patient's adm ission to a hospital for the purposes of medical care or 

1 8  behavioral hea lth care. 

1 9  4 .  "Hospital" means a faci l i ty l icensed under chapter 23-1 6.  

20 .5.,. " Release" means a patient's exit or d ischarge from a hospital to the patient's residence 

2 1  fol lowing an inpatient admission.  

22 .Q,,. "Residence" means a dwel l ing the patient considers to be the patient's home or 

23 

24 

temporary home. The term does not include a rehabi l itation facil ity. hospital. nursing_ 

home, assisted l iv ing faci l ity, or group home. 
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23-48-02. Designation of caregiver. 

.L Within twenty-four hours following a patient's entry to a hospital and again before the 

patient's release or transfer to another hospital or facility, the hospital shall provide 

each patient or the patient's legal guardian with at least one opportunity to designate 

at least one caregiver for purposes of this chapter. 

a. If the patient is unconscious or otherwise incapacitated upon entry to a hospital. 

within twenty-four hours following the patient's recovery of consciousness or 

capacity the hospital shall provide such patient or the patient's legal guardian with 

an opportunity to designate a caregiver for purposes of this chapter. 

b. If the patient or the patient's legal guardian declines to designate a caregiver 

under this section. the hospital shall document this in the patient's medical 

record. 

c. If the patient or the patient's legal guardian designates an individual as a 

caregiver: 

ill The hospital shall request the written consent of the patient or the patient's 

legal guardian to release medical information to the patient's caregiver. 

following the hospital's established procedures for releasing personal health 

information and in compliance with all federal and state laws. If the patient 

or the patient's legal guardian declines to consent to release medical 

information to the patient's caregiver. the hospital is not required under 

section 23-48-03 to provide notice to the caregiver or to provide information 

contained in the patient's discharge plan. 

.(2). The hospital shall record in the patient's record the patient's or legal 

guardian's designation of caregiver: the relationship of the caregiver to the 

patient: and the name. telephone number, and address of the caregiver. 

Q_,_ A patient or legal guardian may elect to change a caregiver designation at any 

time. If a patient or legal guardian notifies the hospital of a change in caretaker 

designation. within twenty-four hours of such notification the hospital shall record 

this change in the patient's medical record. 

2. A designation of a caregiver by a patient or a patient's legal guardian under this 

section does not obligate an individual to perform any after-care tasks for a patient. 
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3. This section may not be construed to require a patient or a patient's legal guardian to 

designate a caregiver. 

23-48-03. Caregiver notice and instruction - Rules. 

.L A hospital shall notify the patient's caregiver of the patient's release or transfer to 

another hospital or facility. This notice may be provided after the patient's physician 

issues a discharge order and may not be less than four hours before the patient's 

actual release or transfer to such hospital or facility. 

2. Before a hospital transfers a patient to another hospital or facility, the transferring 

hospital shall include in the patient's discharge plan the name and contact information 

of the caregiver. 

3. Before a patient's release from a hospital. the hospital shall consult with the caregiver 

and the patient regarding the caregiver's capabilities and limitations and shall issue a 

discharge plan that describes a patient's after-care needs at the patient's residence. 

a. At a minimum. the discharge plan must include: 

ill The name and contact information of the caregiver: 

.(21 A description of all after-care tasks necessary to maintain the patient's 

ability to live at the patient's residence. taking into account the capabilities 

and limitations of the caregiver: and 

.Q). Contact information for any health care. community resources, and 

long-term services and supports necessary to successfully carry out the 

patient's discharge plan. 

b. The hospital issuing the discharge plan shall provide a caregiver with instruction 

in all after-care tasks described in the discharge plan. 

ill At a minimum. the instruction must include a demonstration of the after-care 

tasks performed and at the time of the demonstration an opportunity for the 

caregiver and patient to have questions answered about the after-care 

tasks. 

.(21 The hospital shall document in the patient's medical record the instruction 

required under this subsection. including. at a minimum, the date. time. and 

contents of the instruction. 
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1 4. The state health council may adopt rules to implement the provisions of this chapter. 

2 including rules to further define the content and scope of any instruction provided to a 

3 �iver under this chapter. 

4 23-48-04. Limitations. 

5 .1. This chapter may not be construed to interfere with the rights of an agent operating 

6 under a valid health care directive under chapter 23-06.5. 

7 2. To the extent the unique circumstances of a patient's care require the hospital to vary 

8 

9 

10 

from complying with provisions of this chapter. that hospital shall document the 

variance and the efforts made by the hospital to comply with the provisions of this 

chapter. 

11 3. This chapter does not create a private right of action against a hospital. a hospital 

12 

13 

14 

employee. or an individual with whom a hospital has a contractual relationship and 

does not supersede or replace exiting rights or remedies under any other provision of 

law. 
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Chair  Lee a nd mem bers of the Senate Human Services Committee, I am Ba rba ra Ha ndy-Marche l lo  

from Bisma rck.  I am speaking i n  favor of  restoring House B i l l  1279 to the CAR E Act. 

I am entering into a new phase of l ife as the caregiver to my mother. Though my mother is in p retty 

good hea lth, there have been t imes when it was necessa ry for me to assume the ro le of ca regiver 

whi le she recovered from surgery or i l l ness. I have found that there is no way to adeq uately prepare 

for the various medica l  problems and  emergencies that we a l l  face as we age . 

So far, ou r  experience with the docto rs, nurses, and other medical  professionals has been very good .  

Bismarck hospita ls a nd doctors ach ieve a h igh standard of care .  However, I have more than o nce 

faced rising panic over my ab i l ity to get the information I need.  Though I have probably a nnoyed 

med ica l staff with my q uestio ns, I d on't a lways know that I am asking the right question of the right 

pe rson .  This b i l l  w i l l  create a sound system of commu nication between medical  staff and ca regivers. 

I n  my fa mi ly, we a re fortunate i n  that my mother and I agree that I am her ca regiver when 

necessa ry, but I know of fa mi l ies where the role of caregive r has been confused by fami ly tensions.  

This b i l l  wi l l  he lp  fa mi l ies cla rify th is  role which can on ly  improve the q ua l ity of care. 

I a l so know of ca regivers who have fe lt that they did not rece ive adeq uate information about the 

patient's care or  instructions fo r at-home care . At-home ca re, especia l ly for someone with no 

experience in  human healthcare, ca n be very frightening .  It is very easy to arrive at home and find 

that you don't know or  ca n't remem ber when or  how to administer medication or other treatments. 

You may not know what to expect i n  the normal hea l ing process. More info rmation, inc lud ing 

proper demo nstration of after-ca re tasks, is extremely important in provid ing the best poss ib le 

options for recovery and a return to independence for the patient. 

I enco u rage you to re instate the or ig ina l  version of HB1279 that wo uld implement the CARE Act. 

While it is un l ikely that this bi l l  wi l l  cover every poss ib le healthcare situation, it wi l l  go a long way 

towa rd he lping a fami ly or  a ca regive r  ma nage patie nt care and promote com mu nication between 

medica l  professiona ls  and caregivers. 

Thank you for your  attention to the needs of fa mi l ies who have to provide care to a loved one .  The 

CARE Act wil l  help to remove some of the worry and d ifficu lty for both the ca regiver and the patie nt 

and promote better health for the patient. 
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Senator Judy Lee 
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Dear Senator Lee, 

I am contact ing you a bout HB 1 279 .  
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The bi l l  as orig ina l ly  i ntroduced was to provide add it ional  support and i nstruction for fa m i ly ca regivers 

when loved ones are released from the hospita l .  Unfortunate ly, the House " hoghoused" the b i l l  and  

turned it i nto a study on  home care  services. This was NOT the intent of  the  orig ina l  b i l l .  

Turn ing th is  b i l l  into a study on an u n re lated issue is a s lap i n  the face to fam i ly ca regivers across North 

Dakota . Over 2,000 of my fe l low North Dakota ns sent messages in support of this b i l l .  Add it ional ly, a 

November 2014 AARP survey of 800 Nort h  Da kota ns showed a n  overwhe lming majority supported each 

of the three key provis ions of the CAR E  Act (see percentages below).  

That's why I am asking you to remove the House amend ments and restore the CAR E  Act to its orig ina l  

l a nguage. 

The CARE Act is a s imple  bi l l  that has thre e  im portant provis ions: 

1 )  The name of the fam i ly ca regiver is recorded when a loved one is adm itted i nto a hosp ita l {82% ND's 

surveyed suppo rt); 

2 )  The fami ly ca regiver is  notified if  the loved one is to be d ischarged to another fac i l ity or  back home 

{91% of ND's  surveyed support); and,  

3 )  The fac i l ity m ust provide a n  explanat ion and a demonstration of the med ica l tasks such as medication 

ma nagement, i njections, and wound care that the fa mi ly caregiver wi l l  perform at home (92% of N D's 

surveyed support ) .  

I n  North Da kota, 56 percent of fa m i ly ca regivers i n  North Da kota perform medical  o r  nursing tasks for 

the i r  loved ones.  Two out of three North Dakota ca regivers (66 percent) perform complex medical  or  
n u rsing tasks l i ke managing m ed icatio ns, inc lud ing admin istering i ntravenous fl u ids and i njections.  And 

m ost fami ly ca regivers report that they rece ive l itt le or no i nstruct ion to perform these tasks. That's why 

the CARE Act is  so important. 

North Dakota fa m i ly caregivers provide u n paid care va lued at a n  estimated $830 m i l l ion annua l ly. For 

our state, their contr ibution runs even deeper. By help ing their older loved ones re main  at home a nd 



out of costly nursing homes, usual ly pa id for by Medica id, fa mi ly caregivers a re, in essence, saving the 
state money. 

I encourage you to restore HB 1279 to its origina l  version. After restoring the b i l l, vote YES on the 

origina l HB 1279 - the CARE  Act - to ensure that the North Dakota va lue of fami l ies being engaged in 

heal ing is honored a nd continued .  

Sincerely, 

M r. Mike Tomasko 
1839 CYPRESS WAY 

WEST FARGO, ND 58078-4297 

(701) 205-4583 
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The North Dakota Hospital Association 
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Mission 

The North Dakota Hospital Association 
exists to advance the health status of persons 
served by the membership. 

Study of Home and Com m u n ity-based Services 
Senate H u man Services Comm ittee 

March 1 7, 2015 

Good morning Chairman Lee and Mem bers of the Senate H u man Service 
Comm ittee. I am J erry E. J u rena,  President of the North Dakota Hospital 
Associatio n .  I a m  u nable to be present at th is hearing as I am testify ing in 
House Appropriat ions on the Department of H u man Services Appropriat ion 
bi l l  S B  20 1 2 . 

The orig ina l  b i l l  H B  1 279 m a ndated that hospitals with i n  24 hours of a 
patient's adm ission and again before d ischarge provide the patient an 
opportun ity to designate at least one careg iver. We are sti l l  opposed to th is 
mandate as each hospital cu rrently has a d ischarge plan n i ng process in 
place. I a m  not aware of any com plai nts that have been rereg istered 
regard i ng the cu rrent process. 

Hospitals nationwide have been worki ng with the American Hospital 
Association (AHA) and the Centers for M ed icare and Med i caid Services 
(CMS) to red uce re-adm issions nationwid e .  C M S  through the Hospital 
Engagement Network ( H E N )  prog ram ,  which the North Dakota Hospital 
Association has been a part of, has been mon itori ng and report ing on a 
month ly basis ten qua l ity i n it iatives set by C M S  over the last three years i n  
addit ion to report ing on red ucing re-ad m issions .  

We ca n l ive with a study; however, a study would  show this mandate to be 
a d u pl icat ion of  d ischarge p lann ing efforts .  

I n  a survey that N DHA completed the hospitals l isted the fo l lowi ng reasons 
i n  opposit ion to the o rig ina l  b i l l :  
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• I t  creates addit ional  expense i n  the cost of care by req u i ri ng 
addit ional  documentatio n  of care to be p rovided by non-hospital staff 
i n  a n on-hospital sett ing after leaving the hospita l .  

• The b i l l  wi l l  i n  effect requ i re hospitals  to h i re add itional  staff. The 
h ospitals a l ready h ave a shortage of professional staff and h i ri n g  
add it ional  people wi l l  b e  d ifficu lt. 

• There a re n o  funds a l located to provide this service. Basical ly  th is  b i l l  
creates a n  u nfunded mandate i m posed o n  the hospitals.  

• I t  creates add itional  l i a b i l ity for the h ospitals beyond o u r  contro l .  We 
h ave n o  control of the care that wou l d  be documented i n  a patient's 
chart after the patient l eaves the h ospita l .  Again because it wou ld be 
in the patient's cha rt  the hospitals wou l d  be l iable for any adverse 
o utcomes .  

• We a re n ot aware of any problems or  issues reg a rd i n g  the cu rrent 
method of d ischarge p lan n i ng h ospitals n ow provide. Hospitals  wi l l  
contin u e  to work with referring faci l it ies and fam i l ies o n  the 
coord i n at ion of care u po n  d ischarg e .  

• We can l ive with a study.  Currently hospitals are sti l l  requ i red to 
report to C M S  o n  re-ad m issions and qua l ity i n itiatives. 

We are o pposed to the d u pl ication i n  the d ischa rge pla n n ing process. 

We can l ive with a study b ut fi nd it u n necessary and we oppose any and a l l  
efforts t o  retu rn t o  the orig i n a l  b i l l .  I ask that you g ive th is b i l l  a D o  Not 
Pass . 

If you h ave q uestions I wou l d  be wi l l i ng to add ress them at a later t ime o r  i n  
writ ing .  

Respectfu l ly S u bm itted , 

Jer , . u ren , resident 
North Dakota H ospital Association 




